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CONVENTION FIRST SITTING DAY 1- OPENING

CALL TO ORDER

The opening gavel was delayed due to technical problems with the audio/visual equipment
and the Porcupine program.! While these were being resolved, various housekeeping
announcements were made, including the WIFI password, the use of color-coded wristbands
to indicate social distancing preferences, disinfecting wipes for the microphones, and
procedures for credentialing.

A short in memoriam video prepared by 3L Productions was played honoring Libertarians who
have passed away. A round of applause was extended to the Convention Oversight
Committee for essentially planning three (3) in-person conventions this year and to Party staff
for their assistance in same.

The second (2™) sitting? of the regular 2020 biennial convention of the Libertarian Party was
called to order in Orlando, Florida at 10:11 a.m. on July 9, 2020 by Party Vice-Chair Alex
Merced. All time notations indicate Eastern Time.3

CONVENTION OFFICIALS AND COMMITTEE CHAIRS

Convention Chair: Alex Merced

Convention Secretary: Caryn Ann Harlos

Convention Parliamentarian: Richard Brown

Zoom Administrator: Daniel Fishman (Party Executive Director)

Credentials Committee Chair: Susan Hogarth

Convention Committee Chair: Bette Rose Ryan

Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee Chair: Joseph Bishop-Henchman

Platform Committee Chair: Caryn Ann Harlos

" Ultimattely, the Porcupine application issues could not be resolved, and an altemate participation method of using Zoom polls was used.

2 The 2020 Libertarian Party convention was bifurcated (see LNC Meeting Minutes dated May 2, 2020 and May 9, 2020). The first (1% sitting
took place online on May 22-24, 2020 via Zoom.

3 Simultaneously, a Zoom meeting was convened with proposed delegates seeking to participate remotely as per the July 4, 2020 decision of
the Libertarian National Committee (LNC) stating that full online participation was authorized and that such remote delegates would be fully
credentialed without further action of the convention. The delegates overturned that decision and then subsequently approved the online
delegates as an action of the convention.
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Convention Tellers: David Aitken, Gary Alvstad, Liz DelSignore, T.J. Ferreira, Data Logan,*
Michael Lopez, Guy Merrill, Timothy Perkins, Tom Rowlette, Paige Sexton

Head Tellers: Mike Seebeck and Ashley Vinson

The final official delegate list provided to the Convention Secretary by the Credentials
Committee is attached hereto as Appendix N.5

CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE REPORT

Susan Hogarth, as Chair of the Credentials Committee, presented the initial credentials
report.®

As of 6:28 a.m. on July 9, 2020, 1039 delegates and 650 alternates were verified and
approved by the Credentials Committee. As of the last report this morning, there were 186
on-site delegates and 208 remote delegates for a total of 494 delegates; and 28 on-site
alternates and 49 remote alternates for a total of 77 alternates.

On behalf of the Credentials Committee, Ms. Hogarth moved to accept the credentials report.

Sam Goldstein (IN) OBJECTED to moving forward as there were numerous delegates who
were unable to log into Porcupine.

John Phillips (IL) urged the delegates that since it was apparent that the super-majority of
delegates wished to seat the online delegates to save time by ratifying the LNC decision, and
if they felt that the LNC was out of line, they could move to censure the LNC.

Scott Lieberman (CA) requested the opinion of the Parliamentarian if the following
amendments to the agenda would be the most expeditious way to have all delegates, both in-
person and online, properly and quickly credentialed while minimizing the chance of a rogue
Secretary of State or a rogue Elections Department removing Jo Jorgensen and Spike Cohen
from the ballot by attempting to claim that the Libertarian Party did not follow its own bylaws
and convention rules:

1. Only the in-person delegates vote to accept the list of only in-person delegates;

2. Only the in-person delegates immediately vote to suspend the rules to take up
Bylaws Proposal 1;

3. Only the in-person delegates vote to approve Bylaws Proposal 1;

4 Mr. Logan also assisted in managing the online speaking queue.
5 The complete listing with mailing addresses can be requested from the Party Secretary at secretary@lp.org.
6 Ms. Hogarth thanked the other members of the Credentials Committee as follows: Andrew Forrester (CA), Nathan Gall (W), Leigh LaChine

(AL), Pete Moulds (CA), Mark Potwora (NY), Emily Salvette (MI), Celicia Slafter (FL), Carl Wyzick(VA), Bo Zimmerman (TX), as well as
national staff Andy Bums and Daniel Fishman.
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4. A short recess would be taken to add the remote delegates to the list of the
credentialed delegates; and then

5. The convention would resume with all of the in-person and remote delegate
participating.

Nicholas Sarwark (NH) raised a POINT OF ORDER that it was out of order for Dr. Lieberman
to request that the Parliamentarian engage in debate, and further it was out of order for him
to ask the opinion of the Parliamentarian on what the best way was to do something and by
such, he was sneaking the Parliamentarian into debate. Mr. Sarwark further stated that Dr.
Lieberman may debate his own motion, but he may not have the Parliamentarian engage in
debate on his behalf.’

Mr. Merced ruled the point of order NOT-WELL TAKEN and allowed the Parliamentarian to
speak and express his opinion, and the delegates can choose what to do with that opinion.

Mr. Brown opined that Dr. Lieberman’s proposed motion was the best way to accomplish that
objective. He further stated that he has studied this issue at length and concluded that the
Libertarian Party bylaws do not allow remote participation; as such, there needs to be a bylaw
amendment to permit such participation and allowing the remote participants to vote on a
bylaws amendment to let them participate would be nonsensical. Finally, he stated that the
LNC exceeded its authority when it decreed that online participation was valid as only this
convention had the authority to do so.

Angela McArdle (CA) moved to amend the Credentials Report to remove the remote
patrticipation delegates in order to vote on allowing remote participation by appropriate bylaws
amendments that would permit such participation.

Mr. Merced ruled the McArdle motion OUT OF ORDER and stated that pursuant to RONRS
challenges to credentials reports must be made by name or by state delegation.

Ms. McArdle clarified that she was challenging by name since Ms. Hogarth had indicated that
she had a list of the names of all of the remote participation delegates, and it was those that
she was challenging as a block on the same grounds. Mr. Merced stated that would be IN
ORDER.

Erin Adams (OK) raised an OBJECTION that the underlying Credentials Report was not
correct in its reporting of both the in-person delegates and the remote delegates and until
there was resolution on those issues, it was inappropriate to take up other motions.

Ed Wright (IA) raised an OBJECTION that requiring in-person delegates, who may be
technically challenged, to interface with electronic voting processes does in fact require
people to buy certain equipment in order to fully participate.

" The Parliamentarian later clarified that he was retained to advise the convention body and not just the Chair.

8 Roberts Rules of Order, Newly Revised, 11% Edition
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Mr. Merced ruled the Wright objection NOT WELL-TAKEN due to the extraordinary
circumstances of the pandemic causing the spirit of the bylaws and convention rules to be
broken by disenfranchising many fellow delegates if followed to the letter. In such a scenario,
it was better to be able to participate at least somewhat, rather than fully or not at all, leading
to the present arrangements which were only choice that allowed the most people to have a
voice. He emphasized that this was unique to this year and does not apply to future
conventions.

RECESS

Ken Moellman (KY) moved to recess for one (1) hour to resolve the ongoing credentials
problems.

There was NO OBJECTION to the motion.
The convention entered into a one (1) hour recess.

The convention was called back to order at 11:35 a.m. and several announcements were
made. There were still credentials issues to be resolved at that time.

LUNCH BREAK

Joshua Eakle (TN) moved to recess until after lunch to resolve the remaining credentials
issues.

Aaron Starr (CA) raised a POINT OF ORDER that we cannot allow remote voting until it was
specifically allowed by the in-person delegates via a bylaws amendment.

Mr. Merced ruled the point of order NOT WELL-TAKEN and ruled that until the credentials
report either passed or failed, everyone listed on the report could vote.

The motion to recess PASSED both online via a Zoom poll and on the floor via a voice vote.

CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTD

The convention was called back to order at 2:00 p.m.

The previously stated McArdle motion was taken up as the immediately pending item of
business as follows:

Angela McArdle (CA) moved to amend the Credentials Report to remove the remote
patrticipation delegates in order to vote on allowing remote participation by appropriate bylaws
amendments that would permit such participation.
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Erin Adams (OK) raised an OBJECTION that the delegates were not properly identified in the
Porcupine application, and physical roll call should be called.

Upon request of Mr. Merced, Ms. Hogarth provided updated credentialing numbers as
follows:®

Remote In-Person
410 Delegates | 300 Delegates
75 Alternates | 40 Alternates

Ken Moellman (KY) moved for a physical roll call conducted state by state of those delegates
present.

Nicholas Sarwark (NH) raised a POINT OF ORDER and asked how it was proper to exclude
anyone from voting on the initial credentials report.

Mr. Merced ruled the Moellman motion OUT OF ORDER due to unfeasibility.
Mr. Moellman APPEALED from the ruling of the Chair.

Darryl Perry (NH) moved to divide the identification of delegates by state into identification
individually and moved to end debate on all previous questions.

Upon being informed that Mr. Merced would rule that individual identification would be out of
order, Mr. Perry agreed that identification by state would be sufficient.

Aaron Starr (CA) raised a POINT OF ORDER that remote delegates cannot make motions
since their status was in dispute.

Mr. Merced ruled the point of order NOT WELL-TAKEN and stated that he would be
recognizing all persons listed on the credentials report. He further ruled that challenges to
delegates must be made by name or by state and not by location status.

Alicia Mattson (CA) raised a POINT OF ORDER stating that despite the assertions of the in-
person delegate from New Hampshire, RONR does not clearly state that all delegates listed
in the credentials report are entitled to vote and that it says that when delegates are under
challenge, they may not vote on their own challenge. There was a pending motion questioning
the status of those delegates, so they cannot be allowed to participate until there was a
resolution to that challenge.

9 Ms. Hogarth also clarified that the Credentials Committee did know who was present in the hall as they had stopped by the credentials desk
to check in.
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Mr. Merced repeated his prior ruling and stated that RONR was intended to prevent a minority
of the delegates from removing a majority of the delegates which was what was at issue in
the disputed situation since the majority of delegates were remote.

An unidentified delegate raised a POINT OF ORDER asking what authority the Chair was
relying upon to recognize remote delegates since the adjournment motion from the first (1%)
sitting was to adjourn to an in-person convention and not a hybrid convention.

Mr. Merced ruled the point of order NOT WELL-TAKEN and stated that since delegates were
present in a physical place as required and referenced the prior LNC decision to allow remote
participation. As such, all those listed in the credential report comprised the convention
delegates until amended. At the request of the Chair, Ms. Hogarth confirmed that all persons
on the credentials report were eligible under our current rules to be delegates and can provide
a written list of all of the names.

At the instruction of the Chair, a test vote was sent to make sure that everyone could vote on
the Porcupine application.

Aaron Starr raised a POINT OF ORDER and stated that our rules do not allow ballots except
for elections.

Mr. Merced ruled the point of order NOT WELL-TAKEN and stated that extraordinary
circumstances allow this deviation.

Mr. Starr APPEALED from the ruling of the Chair and referenced Convention Rule 2 in
support of his argument that it was the authority of the body to be accommodating and not the
Chair’s.

Mr. Merced stated that debate would proceed on the prior Moellman appeal but was
interrupted by an additional POINT OF ORDER from an unidentified delegate who questioned
the authority to recognize remote delegates to speak. Mr. Merced ruled that point of order
NOT WELL-TAKEN as the authority was given by the LNC who decided that this convention
would include both in-person and remote delegates which was justified by these extraordinary
circumstances. As such, voting would be conducted by Zoom polls and in-person standing
votes.

Michael Heise (PA) raised a point of parliamentary inquiry on whether or not the LNC had the
authority that the Chair was relying upon to unilaterally determine that remote voting would be
allowed as well as the split credentialing issue.

Mr. Merced stated that it was his position that the LNC had this authority under emergency
provisions, and although the Parliamentarian may have a different position, he was the one
making rulings.

Dustin Nanna (OH) moved to adjoum until 9:00 a.m. tomorrow to resolve all pending issues.
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Arthur Thomas (TX) raised a security issue that people could vote twice under the method
proposed by participating in the standing vote here on the convention floor and also signing
in and participating in the Zoom poll.

A poll was taken to consider the motion to adjourn resulting in the following:

Yes 124
No 249

Simultaneously, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was combined with
the results of the online poll.

The motion to adjourn FAILED.

A poll was taken regarding the Moellman appeal from the ruling of the Chair that a state-by-
state attendance roll of the in-person delegates was out of order due to infeasibility resulting
in the following:

Shall the ruling of the Chair be sustained?

Yes 284
No 104

Simultaneously, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was combined with
the results of the online poll.

The ruling of the Chair was OVERTURNED.

Bill McVay (DE) reminded the Chair that all previous questions had been called, and there
should be no further debate as some delegates were attempting to do.

The Starr appeal was considered next. Mr. Merced stated that since online voting was the
item being challenged, only the standing vote in the room would be taken on this appeal.

The ruling of the Chair was OVERTURNED upon a standing vote.

Erin Adams (OK) OBJECTED that any voting was illegitimate since the credentials report was
still pending.

Mr. Merced reminded the convention that all previous questions had been called.

Since the Chair’s ruling on the Moellman motion was overturned, it became pending as
follows:
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Ken Moellman (KY) moved for a physical roll call conducted state by state of those delegates
present.

The motion PASSED via a voice vote comprising only the in-person delegates.

Andy Craig (CA) raised a POINT OF ORDER that suddenly, without any decision of the body,
the remote delegates were improperly being excluded from votes.

WITHOUT OBJECTION, the convention stood briefly at ease while Mr. Merced conferred
with the Parliamentarian regarding the Mr. Craig’s point of order, and Ms. Hogarth assisted
with credentials questions and issues.

Mimi Robson (CA) stated that the Moellman motion required each delegation chair to compile
a list of those delegates who were present from their state and then to read those lists aloud.

WITHOUT OBJECTION, the convention stood at ease to give time for the delegation chairs
to compile the appropriate lists of their delegates. Vice-Presidential candidate Spike Cohen
was given time to speak to the body during this downtime.

The convention came back to order at 4:15 p.m.

Mr. Merced ruled Mr. Craig’s point of order WELL-TAKEN as the LNC did authorize remote
participation, and the remote delegates were listed as part of the credentials report and should
be allowed to vote on these motions. In summary, it was his ruling that the decision of the
LNC was binding and proper.

Aaron Starr (CA) APPEALED from the ruling of the Chair affirming the LNC’s decision to allow
remote participation as that was not within the authority of the LNC but rather belongs to this
body.

Kevin Moore (CA) moved fo end debate on all previous questions.

The motion to end debate PASSED."® Mr. Perry had also moved to end debate on all
previous questions earlier.

The previously pending questions included the following:

e Aaron Starr (CA) APPEALED from the ruling of the Chair affirming the LNC’s
decision to allow remote participation as that was not within the authority of the
LNC but rather belongs to this body.

"0 It was unclear whether the remote delegates were allowed to participate in that vote.
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e Angela McArdle (CA) moved to amend the Credentials Report to remove the
remote participation delegates in order to vote on allowing remote participation by
appropriate bylaws amendments that would permit such application.

e On behalf of the Credentials Committee, Ms. Hogarth moved to accept the
credentials report.

Voting then proceeded on the Starr appeal. Pursuant to an earlier decision of the body which
overturned a prior ruling of the Chair, only the in-person delegates were permitted to vote on
this appeal.

The ruling of the Chair was OVERTURNED regarding the authority of the LNC, and the
automatic acceptance of both online and in-person delegates as listed in the initial credentials
report.

Mr. Merced passed the gavel to Omar Recuero (FL) as Mr. Merced did not feel that he could
preside while the remote delegates were excluded.

WITHOUT OBJECTION, the convention stood at ease with regards to formal business to
allow time for Ms. Hogarth to prepare the data ordered by the Moeliman’s motion for a roll call
of the in-person delegates. However, Mr. Recuero stated he would entertain points of
information and personal privilege during this down-time.

Marc Tancer (FL) moved to extend time until 6:00 p.m.

Mr. Recuero ruled the motion OUT OF ORDER as no agenda had been adopted.
WITHOUT OBJECTION, the convention once again stood at ease.

The Secretary’s screen was displayed with the names of the delegates and alternates from
every state who were present in the hall. This list comprised the names of everyone who
physically checked in at the credentials desk. Names with arrows on the outside were people
who checked in but were not included on their corresponding Delegation Chair’s list that was
gathered earlier in the day. Names which were handwritten on the side were names of people
who were present but did not physically check in with the credentials desk."" The reported
numbers for the in-person attendees was 300 delegates and 40 alternates.

Mr. Moellman indicated that this information satisfied his motion.

The next item of business was the McArdle motion as follows:

" This list had been preserved and was filed with the convention records archive maintained by the Party Secretary.
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Angela McArdle (CA) moved to amend the Credentials Report to remove the remote
patrticipation delegates in order to vote on allowing remote participation by appropriate bylaws
amendments that would permit such participation.

Nicholas Sarwark (NH) raised a POINT OF ORDER that all delegates, whether in person or

remote, should be allowed to vote on the McArdle motion. Mr. Recuero ruled the point of
order NOT WELL-TAKEN.

The McArdle amendment PASSED by a voice vote of only the in-person delegates.
Alicia Mattson (CA) moved to adopt the credentials report as amended.
The amended credentials report was ADOPTED.

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — CONSIDER BYLAWS AMENDMENT ALLOWING
REMOTE PARTICIPATION FOR 2020

Joseph Bishop-Henchman (DC) moved to suspend the rules to, in one (1) compound motion,
adopt the agenda, proceed to the Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee report, and
approve Proposal 1 of the Bylaws Committee as follows:

Proposal 1
Remote Participation for 2020 Convention

PARTICIPATION FOR 2020 CONVENTION

For the 2020 Regular Convention, if authorized by their state delegation chair,
delegates may register in attendance, be counted as virtually present on the floor,
and participate in business remotely through electronic means provided for by the
national committee.

Provided, this article shall take immediate effect and be automatically repealed upon
the final adjournment of the 2020 Regular Convention.

An unidentified delegate OBJECTED to consideration of the question.
The objection to consideration of the question FAILED upon a voice vote.

Mr. Recuero noted that the motion was worded as a compound motion to suspend the rules
and adopt so that no debate would be permitted.

John Phillips (IL) moved to divide by considering the adoption of the agenda separate from alll
other items.
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Mr. Recuero, upon advice of the Parliamentarian, stated that the Phillips motion to divide fell
under an exception in RONR permitting division upon the request of one (1) member.'?

Will McVay (DE) raised a POINT OF ORDER that a motion for suspension of the rules cannot
be divided. Mr. Recuero ruled the point of order NOT WELL-TAKEN.

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA FOR THE SECOND SITTING

The immediately pending item of business was the approval of the agenda as per the
division of the Bishop-Henchman motion.

D. Frank Robinson (OK) moved fo adjourn until the following morning at 9:00 a.m.
The motion to adjourn FAILED upon a voice vote.
WITHOUT OBJECTION, Matthew Long (CT) moved to end debate on the previous question.

The motion to adopt the agenda PASSED upon a voice vote. The agenda for the second
(2") sitting of the 2020 National Convention was set as follows:

Call to Order

Credentials Committee Report

Adoption of Agenda

Treasurer’s Report

Audit Committee Report

Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee Report
LNC Elections

Platform Committee Report

Adjournment Sine Die

NN~

Erin Adams (OK) called for ORDERS OF THE DAY as the Regional Caucuses were
scheduled to start in three (3) minutes at the adjoining hotel. Mr. Recuero indicated that he
would be proceed to a vote on the second (2") part of the Bishop-Henchman motion first as
it appeared no further debate was desired.

BYLAWS AND CONVENTION RULES COMMITTEE REPORT

The immediately pending item of business was consideration of Proposal 1, without debate,
as per the division of the Bishop-Henchman motion as follows:'3

2 See RONR page 274 lines 32-36, to wit: Sometimes a series of independent resolutions or main motions dealing with different subjects is
offered in one motion. In such a case, one or more of the several resolutions must receive separate consideratio9n and vote at the request of
a single member...

'3 There was some confusion with many stating that the report of the Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee was the next item of business
when it was not. However, the original Bishop-Henchman motion prior to division was to suspend the rules to take that sole proposal up
immediately which required the same threshold as a suspension of the rules to modify the agenda to take it up out of order. The proposal
passed exceeding that threshold (2/3" vote).
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Proposal 1
Remote Participation for 2020 Convention

PARTICIPATION FOR 2020 CONVENTION

For the 2020 Regular Convention, if authorized by their state delegation chair,
delegates may register in attendance, be counted as virtually present on the floor,
and participate in business remotely through electronic means provided for by the
national committee.

Provided, this article shall take immediate effect and be automatically repealed upon
the final adjournment of the 2020 Regular Convention.

WITHOUT OBJECTION, Matthew Long (CT) moved to end debate on the previous question.
Proposal 1 PASSED upon a standing vote and was adopted effective immediately.

Mr. Recuero passed the gavel back to Mr. Merced.

CONVENTION SECOND SITTING DAY 1- ADJOURNMENT

D. Frank Robinson (OK) moved to adjourn until the following morning at 9:00 a.m.
The motion to adjourn PASSED upon a voice vote.

The first (1) day of the second (2") sitting of the convention adjoumned at 6:04 p.m. to
reconvene at 9:00 a.m. the following day.

Following adjournment, informal announcements were heard.

CONVENTION SECOND SITTING DAY 2 - OPENING

The second (2") day of the second (2") sitting of the regular 2020 biennial convention of the
Libertarian Party was called to order both in-person and online via Zoom at 9:08 a.m. on July
10, 2020 by Alex Merced.

CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE UPDATE
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Susan Hogarth, as Chair of the Credentials Committee, presented the credentials report with
numbers reported as follows:

Remote In-Person
442 Delegates | 310 Delegates
138 Alternates | 45 Alternates

On behalf of the Credentials Committee, Ms. Hogarth moved to accept the credentials report.
WITHOUT OBJECTION, John Phillips (IL) moved to end debate.

The motion to approve the Credentials Committee report PASSED by a voice vote of the in-
person delegates only as discussion had not yet taken place regarding the status of the
Porcupine app and online voting.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR ONLINE PARTICIPATION

In order to address the issue of online voting and participation, the Convention Oversight
Committee met the previous evening. Committee member Ken Moellman was asked to
present the decisions made at that meeting.

Mr. Moellman reported that it was decided that Zoom would be provided for all delegates for
viewing purposes and that voting would be done by Election Buddy or some other method as
the state delegation chairs may provide.

Nicholas Sarwark (NH) raised a POINT OF ORDER that the Convention Oversight Committee
has no authority to act on behalf of the LNC. The Chair allowed Mr. Moellman to respond.
Mr. Moellman disagreed and cited the Policy Manual as follows:

The Convention Oversight Committee shall make recommendations for convention sites
fo the LNC, but the LNC shall choose the site. On other matters conceming the Party’s
conventions, the committee shall act on behalf of the LNC. (Section 2.02.7)

In order to address the issue, Mr. Merced stated that for voice and standing votes, he would
continue use of the hybrid method employed the previous day. If any votes were very close
and need more clarity, then for those votes only, Election Buddy or another manner chosen
by the delegation chairs would be used. Balloted votes would proceed as recommended by
the Convention Oversight Committee. WITHOUT OBJECTION, this procedure was adopted
resolving the point of order.
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Roger Roots (MT) moved fo suspend the rules to amend the credentials report to add those
alternates who were physically on-site as delegates with full voting powers.

Nicholas Sarwark (NH) raised a POINT OF ORDER and asked if the particular alternates
referred to in the Roots motion were identified, and if there was space to add those delegates
as it was improper for the convention body to add delegates to a state delegation that were
not added by the state delegation chairs. Mr. Merced advised Mr. Roots that his motion was
OUT OF ORDER as it stood and gave him the opportunity to present a revised motion.

Roger Roots (MT) moved to suspend the rules to amend Bylaws Article 19 adding the following
language for the 2020 convention only:

Alternates present in the Convention hall will have priority over remote delegates. Each
state delegation chair is authorized to rank their remote delegates for seating priority.

Erin Adams (OK) raised a POINT OF ORDER and stated that the motion was disallowed as
the convention body cannot force delegates upon any state delegation or state delegation
chair.

The Roots motion was placed ON HOLD pending written submission to the Secretary.

TREASURER’S REPORT

Mr. Merced asked for any objections to taking up the Treasurer’s report while the Secretary
worked with the Convention Oversight Committee on the platform deletion tokens. THERE
WERE NO OBJECTIONS.

LNC Treasurer Tim Hagan presented his report which is included in Appendices G-l.

Mr. Merced asked for any objections to taking up the Audit Committee report at that time.
THERE WERE NO OBJECTIONS.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Sam Goldstein (IN) moved to suspend the rules to put aside the Audit Committee report until
such time as the Audit Committee Chair, Julie Fox, could access the Zoom interface as she
was having technical difficulties.

THERE WERE NO OBJECTIONS. A copy of the Audit Committee report is attached hereto
as Appendix J.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR ONLINE PARTICIPATION (CONTD
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SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — BYLAWS AMENDMENT REGARDING PRIORITY OF
IN-PERSON ALTERNATES

The Roots motion was taken up as follows:

Roger Roots (MT) moved to suspend the rules to amend Bylaws Article 19 adding the following
language for the 2020 convention only:

Alternates present in the Convention hall will have priority over remote delegates. Each
state delegation chair is authorized to rank their remote delegates for seating priority.

Will McVay (DE) raised a POINT OF ORDER that the Roots motion was not properly
seconded. A second was proffered.

A poll was taken to consider the motion to suspend the rules to amend Bylaws Article 19
resulting in the following:™#

Shall we suspend the rules to amend Bylaws Article 19?

Yes 246
No 31

Simultaneously, a voice vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was combined with
the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules to amend Bylaws Article 19 FAILED.

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — BYLAWS AMENDMENT REGARDING ADDITION OF
ALTERNATES TO DELEGATIONS

Will McVay (DE) moved to suspend the rules to take up consideration of the following: Amend
Bylaws Atrticle 19 to add:

"4 For this portion of the convention, the panelists (primarily delegation chairs) in the Zoom meeting were unable to vote. As the votes were
not close, this was not deemed to be fatal.
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Any alternates on the credentials report adopted July 10, 2020 may be added directly to the
affiliate party delegate entitlement for their state with the consent of the respective delegation
chair for that state.

A poll was taken to consider the motion to suspend the rules to amend Bylaws Article 19
resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules fo take up consideration of an amendment to Bylaws Article 19?

Yes 71
No 231

Simultaneously, a voice vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was combined with
the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules to take up consideration of an amendment to Bylaws Article
19 FAILED.

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — CHANGING ORDER OF LNC ELECTIONS

Darryl Perry (NH) moved fo suspend the rules to amend the agenda fo move the election of
the LNC At-Large representatives prior to the election of the LNC officers.

Mr. Merced inquired if there was objection to hearing from the Secretary on the implications
of this change, if passed, for the teller team. THERE WAS AN OBJECTION.

Nicholas Sarwark (NH) raised a POINT OF ORDER on the issue of permitting the Secretary
to speak at this time. Mr. Merced ruled the point of order NOT WELL-TAKEN.

A poll was taken to consider whether to allow the Secretary to speak on the logistical
implications for tellers if the Perry motion were passed resulting in the following:

Shall we hear from the Secretary regarding logistical implications?

Yes 179
No 107

Simultaneously, a voice vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was combined with
the results of the online poll.

The motion to hear from the Secretary PASSED.

Nicholas Sarwark (NH) raised a POINT OF ORDER that this was in the nature of debate on
a non-debatable motion and would require a suspension of the rules with a 2/3 vote not a
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simple majority. Mr. Merced ruled the point of order NOT WELL-TAKEN as this was more in
the nature of a point of information and not debate.

Jason Smith (NV) APPEALED from the ruling of the Chair.

A poll was taken regarding the Smith appeal from the ruling of the Chair resulting in the
following:

Shall the ruling of the Chair be sustained?
Yes

195
No 105

Simultaneously, a voice vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was combined with
the results of the online poll.

The ruling of the Chair was SUSTAINED.
Ms. Harlos spoke briefly on logistical issues to consider.
Michael Heise (PA) moved for a fifteen (15) recess to resolve Zoom access issues.

A poll was taken to regarding the motion to recess resulting in the following:

Shall we recess for fifteen (15) minutes?
Yes

251
No 88

Simultaneously, a voice vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was combined with
the results of the online poll.

The motion to recess PASSED, and the convention entered into a fifteen (15) minute recess.
Cara Schulz (MN) was recognized to give a special presentation during the recess period.

AUDIT REPORT (CONTD

Mr. Merced informed the convention that a hard stop time was coming up and asked the
indulgence of the body to hear from Julie Fox to fill up the limited time.

Julie Fox, as Chair of the Audit Committee, presented the report of the committee. A copy of
the report is attached hereto as Appendix J.

The convention stood at ease for fifteen (15) minutes.

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND LUNCH BREAK
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The following special presentations were heard:
e A pre-recorded message from Congressman Justin Amash (L-MI)
o Live speech from Vice-Presidential nominee Spike Cohen
e Live speech from Presidential nominee Dr. Jo Jorgensen

e A fundraising pitch and announcement of auctions for a framed copy of the Statement
of Principles and a trophy for the “One True Libertarian” by Erin Adams

The convention broke for lunch and was instructed to return at 2:00 p.m.

PLATFORM DELETION TOKENS

Mr. Merced gave instructions for handling platform deletion tokens. An Election Buddy poll
was sent, and for those who could not access the poll, the Secretary provided physical tokens.

Following a suggestion from a delegate, Mr. Merced stated that all future poll voting would
proceed with the online poll being taken first (without sharing the results) followed by the floor
vote to minimize the chances of one (1) set of votes influencing the other.

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — CHANGING ORDER OF LNC ELECTIONS (cont’d)

Darry Perry (NH) called for ORDERS OF THE DAY which would entail immediate voting on
his prior motion followed directly by the LNC elections. Mr. Merced stated that the Bylaws
and Convention Rules Committee report would come before the LNC elections since the
agenda in the convention rules was adopted and the times listed on the convention site were
not special orders but estimations.

Ms. Harlos requested that Mr. Recuero take over secretarial duties briefly.

A poll was taken to regarding the motion to suspend the rules to amend the agenda to change
the order of LNC elections resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to amend the agenda to change the order of LNC elections?

Yes 145
No 240

After the poll was closed, a voice vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules to amend the agenda to change the order of LNC elections
FAILED.
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Ms. Harlos resumed Secretary duties.
SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — AMEND ORDER OF ITEMS ON AGENDA

David Valente (WV) moved to suspend the rules to amend the agenda to change the order of
business to LNC elections, the Platform Committee report, and the Bylaws and Convention
Rules Committee report.

A poll was taken to regarding the motion to suspend the rules to amend the agenda resulting
in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to amend the agenda?

Yes 208
No 187

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules to amend the agenda FAILED.

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES - SET TIME TO TURN IN PLATFORM DELETION
TOKENS

Mike Seebeck (CO) moved to suspend the rules in order to set a time certain for the turning in
of the platform deletion tokens to 2:00 p.m. the following day or one (1) hour prior to the Platform
Committee report, whichever came sooner.

A poll was taken regarding the motion to suspend the rules to set a time certain for the
submission of platform deletion tokens resulting in the following:

Shall we set a time certain for the submission of the platform deletion tokens?

Yes 202
No 121

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules FAILED.

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — AMEND CREDENTIALS REPORT

Victoria Reynolds (CO) moved to amend the credentials report to add William Arneft, Eric
Bueltel, Victoria Ciraolo, Judith Darcy, and Alexander Hutton to the Colorado delegation as

soon as they can be verified by the Credentials Committee rather than waiting until the next
morning.
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A poll was taken regarding the amendment of the credentials report resulting in the following:

Shall we amend the credentials report to add the five (6) named persons to the Colorado
delegation?

Yes 288

No 50

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to amend the credentials report PASSED by the required 7/8 vote.

Dean Davison (VA) requested a point of personal privilege to request that a note of thanks to
Dr. James Lark (VA) for his years of service to both the state and national parties be included
in the minutes.

BYLAWS AND CONVENTION RULES COMMITTEE REPORT

Joseph Bishop-Henchman began presentation of the Bylaws and Convention Rules
Committee report (attached hereto as Appendix K). He indicated that the committee had
divided up the presentation of the proposals among various members other than himself.

CREATE DELEGATE ALLOCATION RULES FOR STATES THAT USE RANKED-
CHOICE VOTING

On behalf of the Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee, Mr. Bishop-Henchman moved to
amend the Bylaws as follows:

5 Ms. Reynolds’ original motion was to blanket add any additional delegates that were properly credentialed by the state affiliates up to each
state’s delegate allotment to the credentials report. After discussion, Ms. Reynolds settled on the wording above. Additionally, this was not
technically handled as a suspension of the rules, but it functionally was a suspension, and the threshold needed for the motion exceeded the
threshold needed for a suspension.
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ARTICLE 10: CONVENTIONS

[...]

3. Affiliate Party Delegate Entitlements:

Each affiliate party shall be entitled to send delegates to each Regular Convention on the
following basis:

[...]

One delegate for each 0.35 percent, or fraction thereof, of the votes cast nationwide for the
Libertarian Party candidate in the most recent presidential election, cast in that affiliate's
state. If a state conducts its presidential election via Ranked-Choice or Instant
Runoff Voting, the ballots for the Libertarian candidate as tabulated in the first round
of ballot counting will be used for this purpose.

Scotty Boman (MI) moved to end debate.

Mr. Merced deemed the motion MOOT as the time allotted for consideration without
amendment had expired, and the convention rules required moving to an immediate vote.

A poll was taken regarding the amendment of Bylaws Article 10.3 resulting in the following:

Shall we amend Bylaws Article 10.3?

Yes 318
No 27

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to amend Bylaws Article 10.3 PASSED.
CLARIFY PLATFORM AMENDMENTS LANGUAGE

On behalf of the Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee, Alicia Mattson moved to amend
the Bylaws as follows:
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ARTICLE 3: STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES AND PLATFORM

[-]

3. The current Platform shall serve as the basis of all future platforms. The existing Platform
may be amended only at Regular Conventions.

Ledblienalplnle—orads Hens—te
planks;-must be-approved by 2/3-vete. A platform plank may be deleted by majority vote.

New planks or amendments to existing planks require a 2/3 vote.

An unidentified delegate moved fo suspend the rules to allow amendment on this proposal to
require a 2/3 vote for deletion as well.

Mr. Merced ruled this motion OUT OF ORDER as the intended amendment went beyond the
scope of that proposed by the committee.

Erik Lindborg (NC) moved to end debate.

A poll was taken on whether or not to end debate on the amendment to Bylaws Article 3.3
resulting in the following:

Shall we end debate on the amendment to Bylaws Article 3.3?

Yes 338
No 31

After the poll was closed, a voice vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to end debate PASSED.

A poll was taken regarding the amendment of Bylaws Article 3.3 resulting in the following:

Shall we amend Bylaws Article 3.3?

Yes 312
No 40

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to amend Bylaws Article 3.3 PASSED.

CHANGE NOMINATION PROCEDURES FOR PRESIDENT, VICE-PRESIDENT, LNC
OFFICERS, AND NATIONAL COMMITTEE
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On behalf of the Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee, Ms. Mattson moved to amend the
Convention Rules as follows:1®

RULE 7: NOMINATION OF PRESIDENTIAL AND VICE-PRESIDENTIAL
CANDIDATES

1. No person shall be nominated for President or Vice-President unless at least 30
registered delegates join in the nomination in writing submitted to the Chair Secretary,
and the nominee has submitted to the Secretary evidence of sustaining
membership and a statement of willingness to accept the nomination. No delegate
may join in nominating more than one candidate for each office. The affixing of signatures
to a nominating petition per this requirement shall be effected by a transfer of signature
tokens issued by the Credentials Committee.

[...]

RULE 8: ELECTION OF OFFICERS AND NATIONAL COMMITTEE

[...]
3. Nomination ar each eandidate mav be made bv anv deleaate present on-the
floor, provided he or she has the candidate's permission. No person shall be
nominated unless at least 15 registered delegates join in the nomination submitted
to the Secretary, and the nominee has submitted to the Secretary evidence of the
required level of membership and a statement of willingness to accept the
nomination. No delegate may join in nominating more than one candidate per
seat.[.. ]

Darryl Perry (NH) moved fo divide the question between the amendments to Rule 7.1 and
Rule 8.3.

A poll was taken on whether or not to divide the question resulting in the following:

Shall we divide the question?

Yes 154
No 148

'6 Mr. Bishop-Henchman requested that if the delegates wish to adopt this amendment that they consider voting it down at first so that it could
be amended to add a proviso making it effective after the 2020 convention. When this proposal was originally adopted by the committee, they
had envisioned a different timing of events at this convention. If adopted without the proviso, there would be logistical problems in
implementing for this convention.
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After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to divide the question FAILED.

A poll was taken on whether or not to amend Convention Rules 7.1 and 8.3 as proposed by
the committee:

Shall we amend Convention Rules 7.1 and 8.3 as proposed by the committee?

Yes 143
No 222

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to amend Convention Rules 7.1 and 8.3 FAILED.

Alicia Mattson (CA) moved to add the following provision:

This proposal shall take effect after final adjournment of the 2020 convention.

Pietro Geraci (NY) moved to end debate.

A poll was taken on whether or not to end debate on adding the proviso to the proposed
amendment to Convention Rules 7.1 and 8.3 resulting in the following:

Shall we end debate on adding the proviso to the committee proposal?

Yes 327
No 35

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to end debate PASSED.

A poll was taken regarding the amending of the committee proposal to add the Mattson
proviso resulting in the following:

Shall we amend the committee proposal to add the proviso?

Yes 255
No 79
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After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to amend the committee proposal and add a proviso PASSED.
Time for this item had expired and thus proceeded to an immediate vote.

A poll was taken regarding amending Convention Rules 7.1 and 8.3 with the proviso resulting
in the following:

Shall we amend Convention Rules 7.1 and 8.3 with the proviso?

Yes 236
No 97

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll. Mr. Merced was uncertain as the numbers were
close and ordered a counted vote.

After the counted vote, those numbers were combined with the online poll resulting in the
following:

Shall we amend Convention Rules 7.1 and 8.3 with the proviso?

Yes 417
No 190

The motion to amend Convention Rules 7.1 and 8.3 with the proviso PASSED.
The convention stood at ease for approximately ten (10) minutes.

ELIMINATE STATE-BY-STATE ROLL CALL EXCEPT FOR FIRST PRESIDENTIAL
BALLOT

On behalf of the Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee, Mr. Bishop-Henchman moved to
amend the Convention Rules as follows:
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RULE 7: NOMINATION OF PRESIDENTIAL AND VICE-PRESIDENTIAL
CANDIDATES

[...]

3. Each delegation shall tabulate its total vote, and the delegation chair shall deliver a
written total to the Secretary. When all the delegations have submitted their votes, the
Secretary shall declare the voting closed. At-this-point Following the first presidential
ballot, an announcement of each delegation's vote total shall be made by delegation chairs
in alphabetical order beginning with a randomly selected delegation. For all ballots, the
Secretary shall then display the results.

Chris Luchini (NM) moved to end debate.

A poll was taken on whether or not to end debate on the amendment to Convention Rule 7.3
resulting in the following:

Shall we end debate on amending Convention Rule 7.37?

Yes 306
No 30

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to end debate PASSED.

A poll was taken on whether or not to end debate on the amendment to Convention Rule 7.3
resulting in the following:

Shall we amend Convention Rule 7.3?

Yes 331
No 21

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion amend Convention Rule 7.3 PASSED.
PROHIBIT OFFICERS AND AT-LARGE FROM VOTING ON THEIR OWN REMOVAL

On behalf of the Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee, Mr. Bishop-Henchman moved to
amend the Bylaws as follows:
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ARTICLE 6: OFFICERS

[...]

7. The National Committee may, for cause, suspend any officer by a vote of 2/3 of the
entire National Committee, excepting the officer that is the subject of the vote who
may not participate in that vote. The suspended officer may challenge the suspension
by an appeal in writing to the Judicial Committee within seven days of receipt of notice of
suspension. Failure to appeal within seven days shall confirm the suspension and bar any
later challenge or appeal. The Judicial Committee shall set a date for hearing the appeal
between 20 and 40 days of receipt of the appeal and shall notify all interested persons,
which persons shall have the right to appear and present evidence and argument. At the
hearing the burden of persuasion shall rest upon the appellant. The Judicial Committee
shall either affirm the National Committee's suspension of the officer or order the officer's
reinstatement within 30 days of the hearing. Failure of the Judicial Committee to rule within
30 days shall constitute an affirmation of the National Committee's suspension of the
officer. At such time as the suspension is final, the office in question shall be deemed
vacant.

ARTICLE 7: NATIONAL COMMITTEE

[...]

5. The National Committee may, for cause, suspend any member-at-large by a vote of 2/3
of the entire National Committee, excepting the member that is the subject of the vote
who may not participate in that vote. The suspended member-at-large may challenge
the suspension by an appeal in writing to the Judicial Committee within seven days of
receipt of notice of suspension. Failure to appeal within seven days shall confirm the
suspension and bar any later challenge or appeal. The Judicial Committee shall set a date
for hearing the appeal between 20 and 40 days of receipt of the appeal and shall notify all
interested persons, which persons shall have the right to appear and present evidence and
argument. At the hearing the burden of persuasion shall rest upon the appellant. The
Judicial Committee shall either affirm the National Committee’s suspension of the member-
at-large or order reinstatement of the member-at-large within 30 days of the hearing.
Failure of the Judicial Committee to rule within 30 days shall constitute an affirmation of the
National Committee’s suspension of the member at-large. At such times as the suspension
is final, the office in question shall be deemed vacant.

Chris Luchini (NM) moved to end debate.
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A poll was taken on whether or not to end debate on the amendment to Bylaws Articles 6.7
and 7.5 resulting in the following:

Shall we end debate on amending Bylaws Articles 6.7 and 7.5?

Yes 301
No 39

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to end debate PASSED.

A poll was taken on whether or not to amend Bylaws Articles 6.7 and 7.5 resulting in the
following:

Shall we amend Bylaws Articles 6.7 and 7.5?

Yes 284
No 66

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to amend Bylaws Articles 6.7 and 7.5 PASSED.
Sam Goldstein (IN) moved to suspend the rules to extend time until 6:00 p.m.

A poll was taken on whether or not to extend time until 6:00 p.m. resulting in the following:

Shall we extend time until 6:00 p.m.?

Yes 256
No 101

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to extend time until 6:00 p.m. PASSED.
DISQUALIFY ASSISTANT TREASURER FROM AUDIT COMMITTEE

On behalf of the Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee, Ms. Mattson moved to amend the
Bylaws as follows:
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ARTICLE 9: FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING

[...]

2. The National Committee shall cause an efficient double-entry system of accounts to be
installed and maintained. Financial statements of the Party shall be prepared in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Audits shall be performed annually
by an independent auditor. The non-officer members of the National Committee shall
appoint a standing Audit Committee of three members with power to select the independent
auditor. One member shall be a non-officer member or_alternate of the National
Committee and the other two shall not be members or_alternates of the National
Committee. The Assistant Treasurer is not eligible to serve on the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee shall present its findings to each Regular Convention and clarify for
the National Committee any recommendations made by the auditor.

Paul Bracco (VA) moved to end debate.

A poll was taken on whether or not to end debate on the amendment to Bylaws Article 9.2
resulting in the following:

Shall we end debate on amending Bylaws Article 9.2?

Yes 358
No 25

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to end debate PASSED.

A poll was taken on whether or not to amend Bylaws Article 9.2 resulting in the following:

Shall we amend Bylaws Article 9.2?

Yes 345
No 19

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to amend Bylaws Article 9.2 PASSED.

Starchild (CA) moved to suspend the rules to take up consideration of a new Section 15 to
Bylaws Article 7 (National Committee) as follows:
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Members of the Libertarian National Committee (including alternates) shall not
simultaneously serve on the Bylaws, Platform, or Credentials Committees.

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to consider an amendment to Bylaws
Article 7 resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to consider an amendment to Bylaws Article 7?

Yes 155
No 201

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules to consider an amendment to Bylaws Article 7 FAILED.

Nicholas Sarwark (NH) raised a POINT OF ORDER that this body did not set a time limit for
consideration of bylaws amendments. Mr. Merced ruled the point of order WELL-TAKEN.

Nicholas Sarwark (NH) moved to suspend the rules to amend the agenda to end consideration
of bylaws amendments at 6:00 p.m.

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to end consideration of bylaws
amendments at 6:00 p.m. resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to end consideration of bylaws amendments at 6:00 p.m.?

Yes 206
No 138

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules FAILED.

Paige Sexton (TN) moved to suspend the rules to take up Bylaws Proposal 13 at that time out
of the order set by the committee.

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to take up Bylaws Proposal 13 (Elect
Judicial Committee by Regions) at that time resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to take up Bylaws Proposal 13 at that time?

Yes 206
No 138
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After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules PASSED.

ELECT JUDICIAL COMMITTEE BY REGIONS

Mr. Bishop-Henchman explained that there is a minority report on this proposal. Andy Craig
had been selected to speak to the majority report, and Brent Olsen had been chosen to speak

to the minority report.

On behalf of the Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee, Mr. Craig moved to amend the
Bylaws and Convention Rules as follows:

ARTICLE 8: JUDICIAL COMMITTEE

1. The Judicial Committee shall be composed of seven Party members elected-at-each
Regular Non-Presidential Convention, and any five members shall constitute a quorum.

Each National Committee region shall elect, in the same manner as Regional
Representatives, one Judicial Committee member for each Regional Representative
to which the region is entitled. No member of the National Committee may be a member
of the Judicial Committee. The members of the Judicial Committee shall select the Chair
of the Judicial Committee. The Judicial Committee shall take office immediately upon the
close of the Regular Non-Presidential Convention at which elected and shall serve until the
final adjournment of the next Regular Non-Presidential Convention. All Judicial Committee
members shall have been Party members at least four years at the time of their selection.
The remaining members of the Judicial Committee shall appoint new members if vacancies
occur, such appointees to serve until the final adjournment of the next Regular Non-
Presidential Convention.

RULE 1: ORDER OF BUSINESS

[...]
7-Election-of Judicial Committee {in-appropriate years) [renumber subsequent sections]
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RULE 2: VOTING PROCEDURE AND MOTIONS

1. On all matters, except the retention of platform planks, the-election—of Judicial
Committee Members,; Party Officers and at-large members of the National Committee,
and the nomination of Presidential and Vice-Presidential candidates, voting will be by either
voice vote or rising vote. If any delegate objects to the Chair's ruling on the outcome of a
voice vote, a rising vote shall be conducted. If 20 or more delegates object to the Chair's
ruling on the outcome of a rising vote, a counted vote will be held.

Gemmlttee—[renumber subseguent sectlons]

The minority proposal read as follows:

ARTICLE 8: JUDICIAL COMMITTEE

1. The Judicial Committee shall be composed of seven Party members elected at each
Regular Non-Presidential Convention, and any five members shall constitute a quorum. No
member of the National Committee may be a member of the Judicial Committee. The
members of the Judicial Committee shall select the Chair of the Judicial Committee. The
Judicial Committee shall take office immediately upon the close of the Regular Non-
Presidential Convention at which elected and shall serve until the final adjournment of the
next Regular Non-Presidential Convention. All Judicial Committee members shall have
been Party members at least four years at the time of their selection. The remaining
members of the Judicial Committee shall appoint new members if vacancies occur, such
appointees to serve until the final adjournment of the next Regular Non-Presidential
Convention. Should all Judicial Committee positions be vacant, an intervening
convention may fill such vacancies.

Erin Adams (OK) raised a POINT OF ORDER that regional caucuses have already taken
place and since these proposals would take effect immediately, there would be no way for
them to enact this.
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Erin Adams (OK) raised an additional POINT OF ORDER that this would disenfranchise the
states that have already chosen or will choose to be unaffiliated with any region.

Both points of order were taken as more properly points of debate and not points of order.

CONVENTION SECOND SITTING DAY 2- ADJOURNMENT

Time expired at 6:00 p.m.; thus, the second (2") day of the second (2") sitting of the
convention adjourned to reconvene at 9:00 a.m. the following day.

Following adjournment, informal announcements were heard.

CONVENTION SECOND SITTING DAY 3- OPENING

The third (3™) day of the second (2" sitting of the regular 2020 biennial convention of the
Libertarian Party was called to order both in-person and online via Zoom at 9:18 a.m. on July
11, 2020 by Alex Merced.

CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE UPDATE

Susan Hogarth, as Chair of the Credentials Committee, presented the credentials report with
numbers reported as follows:

Remote In-Person
462 Delegates | 339 Delegates
151 Alternates | 51 Alternates

On behalf of the Credentials Committee, Ms. Hogarth moved to accept the credentials report.
There was NO OBJECTION to adopting the credentials report.

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES - SET TIMES CERTAIN FOR BUSINESS

Sam Goldstein (IN) moved to suspend the rules to do the following:

Fix the time of today’s adjournment at 5:00 p.m.

Fix the call to order tomorrow at 9:00 a.m.

Fix the time of final adjournment at 1:00 p.m. tomormrow
Fix the time to begin LNC elections at 10:15 a.m. today
Limit Platform debate to four (4) hours

2020 NATIONAL CONVENTION | SECOND SITTING Page 38
ORLANDO, FLORIDA AND VIA ZOOM — FINAL



A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to fix those times for business at this
time resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules on whether or not to suspend the rules to fix times for business?

Yes 237
No 80

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules PASSED.

BYLAWS AND CONVENTION RULES COMMITTEE REPORT (CONTD

ELECT JUDICIAL COMMITTEE BY REGIONS (cont’d)

John Phillips (IL) moved to extend debate on Bylaws Proposal 13 (Elect Judicial Committee
by Region) for five (5) minutes.

A poll was taken on whether or not to extend time to consider Bylaws Proposal 13 resulting in
the following:

Shall we extend time to consider Bylaws Proposal 13?

Yes 171
No 128

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to extend time to consider Bylaws Proposal 13 PASSED.

The amendments previously moved read as follows:
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ARTICLE 8: JUDICIAL COMMITTEE

1. The Judicial Commlttee shall be composed of seven Party members elected-at-each

,.and any five members shall constitute a quorum.
Each National Committee region shaII elect, in the same manner as Regional
Representatives, one Judicial Committee member for each Regional Representative
to which the region is entitled. No member of the National Committee may be a member
of the Judicial Committee. The members of the Judicial Committee shall select the Chair
of the Judicial Committee. The Judicial Committee shall take office immediately upon the
close of the Regular Non-Presidential Convention at which elected and shall serve until the
final adjournment of the next Regular Non-Presidential Convention. All Judicial Committee
members shall have been Party members at least four years at the time of their selection.
The remaining members of the Judicial Committee shall appoint new members if vacancies
occur, such appointees to serve until the final adjournment of the next Regular Non-
Presidential Convention.

RULE 1: ORDER OF BUSINESS

[...]
7-Election-of Judicial Committee {in-appropriate years) [renumber subsequent sections]

RULE 2: VOTING PROCEDURE AND MOTIONS

1. On all matters, except the retention of platform planks, the-election—of Judicial
Committee Members,; Party Officers and at-large members of the National Committee,
and the nomination of Presidential and Vice-Presidential candidates, voting will be by either
voice vote or rising vote. If any delegate objects to the Chair's ruling on the outcome of a
voice vote, a rising vote shall be conducted. If 20 or more delegates object to the Chair's
ruling on the outcome of a rising vote, a counted vote will be held.
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Committee-[renumber subsequent sections]

A poll was taken on whether or not to amend Bylaws Article 8.1, Convention Rule 1.7,
Convention Rule 2.1, and Convention Rule 9 resulting in the following:

Shall we amend Bylaws Article 8.1, Convention Rule 1.7, Convention Rule 2.1, and

Convention Rule 9?
Yes 71
No 278

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to amend Bylaws Article 8.1, Convention Rule 1.7, Convention Rule 2.1, and
Convention Rule 9 FAILED.

Consideration then proceeded to the minority proposal.

On behalf of the Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee, Mr. Bishop-Henchman moved to
amend the Bylaws and Convention Rules as follows:
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ARTICLE 8: JUDICIAL COMMITTEE

1. The Judicial Committee shall be composed of seven Party members elected at each
Regular Non-Presidential Convention, and any five members shall constitute a quorum. No
member of the National Committee may be a member of the Judicial Committee. The
members of the Judicial Committee shall select the Chair of the Judicial Committee. The
Judicial Committee shall take office immediately upon the close of the Regular Non-
Presidential Convention at which elected and shall serve until the final adjournment of the
next Regular Non-Presidential Convention. All Judicial Committee members shall have
been Party members at least four years at the time of their selection. The remaining
members of the Judicial Committee shall appoint new members if vacancies occur, such
appointees to serve until the final adjournment of the next Regular Non-Presidential
Convention. Should all Judicial Committee positions be vacant, an intervening
convention may fill such vacancies.

Bowen Chapel (KS) moved fo end debate.

A poll was taken on whether or not to end debate on amending Bylaws Article 8.1 resulting in
the following:

Shall we end debate on amending Bylaws Article 8.1?

Yes 296
No 84

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to end debate PASSED.

A poll was taken on whether or not to amend Bylaws Article 8.1 resulting in the following:

Shall we amend Bylaws Article 8.1?

Yes 256
No 112

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to amend Bylaws Article 8.1 PASSED.

John Phillips (IL) moved to suspend the rules to take up Bylaws Proposal 18 at that time.
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A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to take up Bylaws Proposal 18 (Multi-
Round Voting for Judicial Committee and LNC At-Large) immediately resulting in the
following:'”

Shall we suspend the rules to take up Bylaws Proposal 18 at that time?

Yes 182
No 124

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules FAILED.
Paige Sexton (TN) moved to suspend the rules to take up Bylaws Proposal 11 at that time.

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to take up Bylaws Proposal 11
(Limitations on Use of Executive Session by LNC and Its Committees) at that time resulting
in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to take up Bylaws Proposal 11 at that time?

Yes 182
No 124

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

"7 In response to a request for information, Mr. Bishop-Henchman described the proposal as changing the method of voting for the LNC
officers and members of the national committee rather than the way the proposal is titles which only refers to the Judicial Committee and LNC
At-Large representatives. The title of the proposal is used in the body of these minutes. The proposal read as follows:

RULE 8: ELECTION OF OFFICERS AND NATIONAL COMMITTEE

1. Nominations for Party Officers shall be from the floor. The election shall be conducted in the following manner:
a. For each office, a majority vote will be necessary for election.

b. Each delegation shall tabulate its total vote, and the delegation chair shall deliver a written total to the Secretary. When all delegations have
submitted their votes, the Secretary shall declare the voting closed.
¢. In cases where no candidate receives a majonty the candldate WIth the fewest votes and any candldates polling Iess than 5% shall
be struck from subsequent ballots runof Bwe soshl
2. Nominations for the at-large members of the Natlonal Commlttee shaII be from the ﬂoor The election shaII be conducted in the following
manner:
a. Each delegate may cast a ballot with a vote for either none-of-the-above or one vote per seat to be elected
candidates. Every ballot with a vote for none-of-the-above or one or more candidates is counted as one ballot cast. A vote for none-of-the-
above shalll be ignored if the ballot also includes a vote for any other candidate.
b. Each delegation shall tabulate its total vote, and the delegation chair shall deliver a written total to the Secretary, along with the ballots cast.
c. When all delegations have submitted their votes, the Chair shall declare the voting
closed. The top five candidates receiving a majority vote of the ballots cast shall be elected. Tie votes affecting the outcome shaill be decided
by lot.
d. In cases where vacancles remain after a round of voting: after the first round of voting, the number of vacancies that remain to

be eligible to be voted upon in a second round, with any candidates polling less than 5% struck from subsequent ballots along with
the last place finisher in the preceding round if not otherwise eliminated; this process will repeat itself for the third round of votin

if necessary.
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The motion to suspend the rules PASSED.
LIMITATIONS ON USE OF EXECUTIVE SESSION BY THE LNC AND ITS COMMITTEES

On behalf of the Bylaws and Convention Rules Committee, Mr. Bishop-Henchman moved to
amend the Bylaws as follows:

ARTICLE 7: NATIONAL COMMITTEE

15. The LNC and all of its committees shall conduct all votes and actions in open
session; executive session may only be used for discussion of personnel matters,
contractual negotiations, pending or potential litigation, or political strategy
requiring confidentiality.

Paul Bracco (VA) moved to end debate.

A poll was taken on whether or not to end debate on amending Bylaws Article 7.15 resulting
in the following:

Shall we end debate on amending Bylaws Article 7.15?

Yes 336
No 62

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to end debate PASSED.

A poll was taken on whether or not to amend Bylaws Article 7.15 resulting in the following:

Shall we amend Bylaws Article 7.15?

Yes 307
No 57

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to amend Bylaws Article 7.15 PASSED.

2020 NATIONAL CONVENTION | SECOND SITTING Page 44
ORLANDO, FLORIDA AND VIA ZOOM — FINAL



Barry Short (UT) moved to suspend the rules to extend the time for bylaws deliberations by
ten (10) minutes to take up Bylaws Proposal 17 at that time.

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to extend time for bylaws deliberations
by ten (10) minutes to take up Bylaws Proposal 17 (Allow LNC to Authorize Online or Remote
Participation at Conventions) at that time resulting in the following:

Z : pend the rules o extena e for byla geliberations by e 0 es [0
aKe Up byia ~roposd
Yes 239
No 163

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules FAILED."®
SUSPENSION OF THE RULES - JUDICIAL COMMITTEE ELECTIONS

Omar Recuero (FL) moved to suspend the rules to amend the agenda to take up Judicial
Committee elections immediately after the LNC elections.

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to amend the agenda to take up
Judicial Committee elections immediately after the LNC elections resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to take up Judicial Committee elections immediately after the
LNC elections resulting in the following?

Yes 278

No 111

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules PASSED.

WITHOUT OBJECTION, John Phillips (IL) moved to enter into [a fifteen (15) minute] recess.

'8 This proposal read as follows:
ARTICLE 10: CONVENTIONS

1. Regular Conventions

The Party shall hold a Regular Convention every two years, at a time and place selected by the National Committee. Regular Conventions
shall be held sometime during the period of July of an odd-numbered year through August of an even-numbered year. All business required
to be conducted at Regular Conventions shall be conducted at Regular Conventions only. In the event that extraordinary circumstances
affect the ability to hold a regular convention or cause unusual barriers to attendance, the National Committee may authorize an
online location and/or remote participation at a Regular Convention by a two-thirds vote.
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ELECTION OF LNC CHAIR

Outgoing Chair Nicholas Sarwark gave a brief speech reflecting back on his six (6) year
tenure.

LNC CHAIR NOMINATIONS
Floor nominations were opened for the office of LNC Chair.

e Ethan Bishop-Henchman (DC) nominated Joseph Bishop-Henchman.

o Pietro Geraci (NY) nominated Tony D’Orazio.

e Robert Perry (KY) and an unidentified online delegate nominated Alex Merced. Mr.

Merced declined the nomination.

Angele McArdle (CA) nominated Joshua Smith.

Jim Fulner (MI) and Vermin Supreme (MA) nominated Mike Shipley.

Tiffany Diaz DeLeon (WA) nominated Jacob Lamont.

Timothy Perkins (OR) nominated NOTA.

Darryl Perry (NH) and Michelle MacCutcheon (OH) nominated Dulap Nelson. Mr.

Nelson did not meet the qualifications as he is a lizard.

e Dan Reale (CT) nominated Christopher Thrasher. Mr. Thrasher declined the
nomination.

David Valente (WV) moved to close nominations.
There was NO OBJECTION.

Speaking order for the LNC Chair candidates was randomized with the Secretary’s 20-sided
die (compliments of Dayl Thomas of Delaware) and nomination speeches proceeded as
follows:

Nominee Nomination Speakers

Tony D’'Orazio Pietro Geraci , Tony D’Orazio, Larry Sharpe

Joseph Bishop-Henchman | Ethan Bishop-Henchman, Joseph Bishop-Henchman,
Laura Ebke, Ryan Graham, Tim Hagan, Adam Reinhart,
Steve Scheetz, Ashley Shade

NOTA Phillippe Cadorette, Timothy Perkins'®

Jacob Lamont Tiffany Diaz DelLeon, Jacob Lamont, Randy McGlenn,
Rob Stratton, Starchild

Joshua Smith Steven Nekhaila, Joshua Smith

Additionally, fast-paced video collage of well over fifty clips
of recommendation was shown.

'8 Mr. Perkins ended his speech by rick-rolling the convention.
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Nominee Nomination Speakers
Mike Shipley Mike Shipley, Vermin Supreme

The convention broke for lunch until 2:00 p.m. Without objection, balloting proceeded over
lunch break as per the Secretary’s instructions to handle both online and in-person balloting.

During and following lunch, while balloting was proceeding, various announcements and
addresses by candidates to the convention body were heard.

RATIFICATION OF RESULTS OF FIRST SITTING

Aaron Starr (CA) moved to suspend the rules to make the following resolution:

We, the delegates of the 2020 Libertarian National Convention, assembled in
Convention in Orlando, hereby confirm and celebrate the Libertarian Party’s
nomination of Jo Jorgensen and Spike Cohen for President and Vice-President of
the United States.

There was no objection to the adoption of that resolution.
ELECTION OF LNC CHAIR (CONT'D
ELECTION OF LNC CHAIR — ROUND ONE RESULTS

Election results for the LNC Chair race were presented with a review of state-by-state results
prior to displaying the following totals:

CHAIR — ROUND ONE

Candidate Votes Percent
Joseph Bishop-Henchman 425 | 43.81%
Tony D’Orazio 86| 8.87%
Jacob Lamont 60| 6.19%
Mike Shipley 38| 3.92% | *ELIMINATED*
Joshua Smith 327 | 33.71%
Write-In: Alex Merced 1 .10%
Write-In: Brandon Nelson 2 21%
Write-In: Dulap Nelson 4 A1%
NOTA 27| 278%
TOTALS: 970 100%

The state-by-state subtotals are represented in Appendix A.
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Bruce Newman (NV) raised a point of inquiry regarding the vote totals since the last
credentials report only showed a total of 801 delegates yet 970 votes were recorded. Emily
Salvette explained that the numbers in tomorrow’s credentials report will reflect that fact that
more delegates checked in since the time of the morning credentials report.

Aaron Starr (CA) requested an updated credentials report this afternoon. Susan Hogarth
indicated that the committee will try to provide one.

Mike Shipley was recognized for two (2) minutes to give a concession speech.

Josh Eakle (TN) moved to suspend the rules to eliminate all candidates on the second (2)
round of Chair voting except the top two (2).

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to eliminate all candidates except the
top two (2) on the second round (2™) of Chair voting resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to eliminate all candidates except the top (2) on the second (2")
round of Chair voting?

Yes 309
No 131

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules PASSED.
Starchild (CA) called for division.

The vote totals (combined of in-person and online) after division were as follows:

Yes 517
No 238

The motion to suspend the rules was affirmed to have PASSED.

Jacob Lamont and Tony D’'Orazio were recognized for two (2) minutes each to give
concession speeches.

As a result of the motion to suspend the rules, the first (1%) round of voting for LNC Chair
resulted in the following:
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CHAIR — ROUND ONE

Candidate Votes Percent
Joseph Bishop-Henchman 425 | 43.81%
Tony D’Orazio 86| 8.87% | *ELIMINATED*
Jacob Lamont 60| 6.19% | *ELIMINATED*
Mike Shipley 38| 3.92% | *ELIMINATED*
Joshua Smith 327 | 33.71%
Write-In: Alex Merced 1 .10%
Write-In: Brandon Nelson 2 21%
Write-In: Dulap Nelson 4 A1%
NOTA 27| 278%

TOTALS: 970 100%
ELECTION OF LNC CHAIR — ROUND TWO
As no candidate achieved a majority, a second (2"%) round of balloting was started.

Erin Adams (OK) requested a quorum call. Mr. Merced ruled the request DILATORY as it
was obvious that a quorum was present.

Multiple concerns were raised about the potential for double-voting in the Zoom meeting room.
This potential flaw was acknowledged, and different procedures were planned to be
implemented for the following day by Mr. Fishman.

Mr. Merced stated that while the round two (2) balloting was being conducted for the LNC
Chair election, it was his intention to take nominations for Treasurer and then Vice-Chair.
There was objection.

Omar Recuero (FL) moved to extend time for the evening adjournment from 5:00 p.m. to 6:00
p.m.

A poll was taken on whether or not to extend time for the evening adjournment from 5:00 p.m.
to 6:00 p.m. resulting in the following:

Shall we extend time for the evening adjournment from 5:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.?
Yes

No Numbers not reported but acknowledged as 2/3rds

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to extend time PASSED.

Andrew Kolstee (NY) raised a POINT OF ORDER that the prior motion to suspend the rules
to eliminate candidates was improper as it passed by only sixteen (votes) and more than that
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number were not afforded the opportunity to vote. Mr. Merced ruled the point of order NOT
WELL-TAKEN as untimely and settled.

Mr. Kolstee APPEALED from the ruling of the Chair.

Mr. Merced ruled the appeal DILATORY.

ELECTION OF LNC TREASURER

As per the prior motion by Mr. Merced, a poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the
rules to immediately take up election of Treasurer following the election of LNC Chair resulting
in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to immediately take up election of Treasurer following the
election of LNC Chair?

Yes 255
No 113

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules PASSED.
LNC TREASURER NOMINATIONS
Floor nominations were opened for the office of LNC Treasurer.

e Sam Goldstein (IN) nominated Tim Hagan.
o Darryl Perry (NH) nominated George Phillies. Mr. Phillies was not available to accept.?°

ELECTION OF LNC TREASURER - FINAL RESULT

Sam Goldstein (IN) moved fo accept the election of Tim Hagan for LNC Treasurer by
acclamation.

There was NO OBJECTION, and Mr. Hagan was ELECTED.
Mr. Hagan briefly addressed the body.

ELECTION OF LNC VICE-CHAIR

LNC VICE-CHAIR NOMINATIONS

20 Mr. Phillies later notified the convention that he would serve faithfully if elected, but he really does not want the job.
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Floor nominations were opened for the office of LNC Vice-Chair.

e Carl Newman (NH) nominated Tony D’'Orazio.

e John Phillips (IL) nominated Richard Longstreth.

¢ Randall Daniel (KY) nominated Ken Moellman. Dan Reale (CT) and Rex Lawhorne
(OK) seconded the nomination.

e John Waldenberger (PA) nominated Steve Scheetz. Mr. Scheetz declined the
nomination.

e Mark Hinkle (CA) nominated Geoff Neale. Philipe Cadorette (FL) seconded the
nomination.

o James Ogle (CA) self-nominated. An objection was raised as he was not a seated

delegate and thus could not make a nomination. Mimi Robson (CA) nominated James

Ogle.

Randy McGlenn (WA) nominated Jacob Lamont.

John Phillips (IL) nominated Alex Merced. Mr. Merced declined the nomination.

Jake Leonard (IL) nominated Valerie Sarwark. Ms. Sarwark declined the nomination.

Joshua McHoes (AK) nominated Vermin Supreme. Mr. Supreme was not available to

accept the nomination.?!

e Clay Hunt (TX) nominated Jeff Wood.

e Sasha Cohen (IL) nominated James Weeks. Mr. Weeks declined the nomination.??

Darryl Perry (NH) raised a POINT OF ORDER based on Party Bylaw 7.4 that an LNC member
cannot be a member of any other Party and questioned whether this would disqualify Mr.
Supreme or Mr. Ogle. Mr. Merced ruled the point of order NOT WELL-TAKEN and that
neither are disqualified at this point.

Greg Hertzsch (IN) moved to mandate that those who have already spoken once during
nominations cannot speak again.

Mr. Merced ruled OUT OF ORDER but stated he will be mindful to recognize people who
have not had an opportunity to speak.

Public office candidates were continued to be permitted to address the convention during the
LNC Chair second (2") round balloting process.

Miguel Duque (WA) moved to suspend the rules to limit nominating speeches to one (1)
minute for candidates who have already run for a prior race.

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to limit nominating speeches to one
(1) minute for candidates who have already run for a prior race resulting in the following:

21 Jim Fulner (M) advised that Mr. Supreme had previously indicated that he would not accept any such nomination.

22 This nomination was made a bit later but is reported here to keep all of the nominations in one place
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Shall we suspend the rules to limit nominating speeches to one (1) minute for candidates
who have already run for a prior race?

Yes 337
No 66

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules PASSED.

Seeing no further nominations for LNC Vice-Chair, Mr. Merced closed the nominations
WITHOUT OBJECTION.

Speaking order for the LNC Vice-Chair candidates was randomized with the Secretary’s 20-
sided die and nomination speeches were set in the following order:

Ken Moellman
NOTA

Jeff Wood

Tony D’Orazio
Jacob Lamont
James Ogle
Richard Longstreth
Geoff Neale

All speeches are five (5) minutes with the exception of Jacob Lamont and Tony D’Orazio who
have one (1) minute each.

Susan Hogarth reported that the Credentials Committee was not able to put together an
updated report in the time allotted.

ELECTION OF LNC CHAIR (CONT'D

ELECTION OF LNC CHAIR — ROUND TWO (cont’d)

Aaron Starr (CA) requested a Convention Rule 3 challenge in order to give delegates
confidence in the integrity of the votes. He suggested that the Chair pick two (2) states (with
opposite levels of support for the two (2) candidates) and have the Secretary poll the
delegates.

John Phillips (IL) OBJECTED to consideration of the question.

In response, multiple delegation chair confirmed that their votes were reported correctly. Mr.
Starr WITHDREW his request.
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ELECTION OF LNC CHAIR — ROUND TWO RESULTS - FINAL

Election results for round two (2) of the LNC Chair race were presented with a review of state-
by-state results prior to displaying the following totals:

CHAIR — ROUND TWO

Candidate Votes Percent
Joseph Bishop-Henchman 528 | 54.49% | *ELECTED*
Joshua Smith 327 | 33.71%
Write-In: Tony D’Orazio 4 41%
Write-In: Nicholas Sarwark 1 .10%
NOTA 57| 5.88%
TOTALS: 969 100%

The state-by-state subtotals are represented in Appendix B.

Having received a majority of the 969 ballots, Joseph Bishop-Henchman was ELECTED as
LNC Chair.

There were multiple requests for motions to suspend the rules to extend time for the day to
7:00 p.m. Mr. Merced ruled all such motions OUT OF ORDER as dilatory and unable to be
heard as time had already expired and as such although not formally declared, this session
adjourned at 6:00 p.m. There were attempts to appeal this ruling. Mr. Merced repeated that
no appeals could be done after adjournment as that opportunity had passed.

CONVENTION SECOND SITTING DAY 3- ADJOURNMENT

Time expired at 6:00 p.m.; thus, the third (3") day of the second (2") sitting of the convention
adjourned to reconvene at 9:00 a.m. the following day.

Following adjournment, informal announcements were heard.

CONVENTION SECOND SITTING DAY 4 - OPENING

The fourth (4") day of the second (2™) sitting of the regular 2020 biennial convention of the
Libertarian Party was called to order both in-person and online via Zoom at 9:18 a.m. on July
12, 2020 by Alex Merced.

CREDENTIALS COMMITTEE UPDATE

Susan Hogarth, as Chair of the Credentials Committee, presented the credentials report with
numbers reported as follows:
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Remote In-Person
493 Delegates | 346 Delegates
174 Alternates | 43 Alternates

It was noted that ten (10) delegates have checked out and that quorum was 423 out of 1,056
credentialed voters.

On behalf of the Credentials Committee, Ms. Hogarth moved to accept the credentials report.

Aaron Starr raised a POINT OF ORDER asked how there could be a total of 1,056 delegates
when the maximum number of possible delegates if every state had filled their delegation was
1,046 delegates. Ms. Hogarth explained this was under the assumption that the online
alternates were acting as delegates; however, the same could not be said to be true of the in-
person delegates. It was the ultimate responsibility of the delegation chairs to make sure only
proper delegates are voting. Mr. Starr questioned why quorum was being based on the higher
number but decided not to pursue the issue.

There was NO OBJECTION to adopting the credentials report.

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES - LIMIT NOMINATING SPEECHES AND USE
APPROVAL VOTING

Adam Shuknecht (CO) moved to suspend the rules to adjust the length of all LNC At-Large
and Judicial Committee nominating speeches to a blank; to adopt approval voting for all LNC
and JC positions with seats being filled by plurality in the first (1)) round of balloting. This rule
suspension would expire at the close of the 2020 convention.

Omar Recuero (FL) asked that a moment of recognition be given in honor of that day being
the birthdays of both elected Libertarian Jeff Hewitt (CA) and former gubematorial candidate
Larry Sharpe (NY).

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to adjust the length of all LNC At-
Large speeches to a blank and adopt approval voting for all LNC and JC positions with seats
being filled by plurality in the first (15!) round of voting resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to adjust the length of all LNC At-Large speeches to a blank

and adopt approval voting for all LNC and JC positions with seats being filled by plurality in

the first (
Yes 232
No 67

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.
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The motion to suspend the rules PASSED.
Carolyn Wade (OR) moved to divide the question.

Mr. Merced ruled the motion OUT OF ORDER as the motion had already passed and all that
was left was to fill the blank.

Jim Fulner (Ml) demanded that the question be divided as they are entirely unrelated.
Mr. Merced repeated his ruling that he had given to Ms. Wade.

Extensive discussion happened on the proper way to handle the issue of the blank.
Ms. Harlos asked Mr. Recuero to take up Secretary duties temporarily.

Caryn Ann Harlos (CO) raised a POINT OF ORDER regarding an email sent out by the
Executive Director stating that there were cases of double voting in the Zoom polls which
raises serious issues about the integrity of the process. Mr. Fishman clarified this only affected
the Zoom polls and not any balloted votes. No clear resolution was offered other than asking
people not to do that.

A poll was taken on whether or not to fill the blank in the prior motion with two (2) minutes
resulting in the following:

Shall we fill the blank in the prior motion with two (2) minutes?

Yes 316
No 62

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to fill the blank with two (2) minutes PASSED.

Mr. Merced reminded everyone that those who have previously spoken would be limited to
one (1) minute pursuant to the motion that was passed the day before. An unidentified
delegate objected that the immediately prior motion would have superseded the earlier motion
so that everyone would have two (2) minutes. Mr. Merced declined to debate over an
additional minute and conceded the point.

ELECTION OF LNC VICE-CHAIR (CONTD

LNC VICE-CHAIR NOMINATIONS (cont’d)

Nomination speeches for Vice-Chair proceeded as follows:
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Nominee Nomination Speakers

Ken Moellman Randall Daniel, Joshua Eakle, Sam Goldstein, Ryan
Graham, Aaron Harris, Jeff Hewitt, Andy Jacobs, Alicia
Mattson, Ken Moellman, Dustin Nanna, Robert Perry,
Boomer Shannon

NOTA Nicholas Sarwark

Jeff Wood Jim Fulner, Dane Posner, James Weeks, Jeff Wood

Tony D’Orazio Tony D’Orazio

Jacob Lamont Jacob Lamont

James Ogle James Ogle

Richard Longstreth Erin Adams, Joseph Bishop-Henchman, Tim Hagan,
Richard Longstreth, John Phillips

Geoff Neale Geoff Neale

Mr. Merced reminded the delegates of the change in voting procedure to approval voting with
the winner being selected by plurality on the first (1%t) round of voting.

Ballots were distributed, and the convention stood at ease for ten (10) minutes.
INCOMING CHAIR ACCEPTANCE SPEECH

Mr. Bishop-Henchman addressed the convention for several minutes.

ELECTION OF LNC SECRETARY

LNC SECRETARY NOMINATIONS
Floor nominations were opened for the office of LNC Secretary.

o Kryssi Wichers (OH) nominated Evan McMahon.
e Marcus Baker (TN) nominated Dave Jones.
e Angela McArdle (CA) nominated Caryn Ann Harlos.

ELECTION OF LNC AT-LARGE REPRESENTATIVES

LNC AT-LARGE REPRESENTATIVE NOMINATIONS

Floor nominations were opened for the office of LNC At-Large Representative. There were
five (5) open seats.

An unidentified Maryland delegate nominated Jacob Lamont.
Bruce Newman (NH) nominated Valerie Sarwark.

Omar Recuero (FL) nominated Alicia Mattson.

Alex Smith (NC) nominated Erik Raudsep.

2020 NATIONAL CONVENTION | SECOND SITTING Page 56
ORLANDO, FLORIDA AND VIA ZOOM — FINAL




Dean Davison (VA) nominated Bill Redpath.

Chase Oliver (GA) nominated Richard Manzo.
Michelle MacCutcheon (OH) nominated Darryl Perry.
Justin Bake (UT) nominated Kieran O’Se’.

Dave Penner (TN) nominated Joshua Smith.

Jim Fulner (MI) moved fo set the time to which to adjourn at 7:00 p.m. and stated it was a
pnivileged interrupting motion.

Mr. Merced ruled the motion DILATORY.

David Sexton (TN) nominated Paige Sexton.

Mark Rutherford (IN) nominated Sam Goldstein.

Paul Grindle (NY) nominated Henry Conoly.

John Phillips (IL) nominated Laura Ebke.

Luke Ensor (PA) nominated Ken Moeliman.

Jeff Hewitt (CA) nominated Brent Olsen.

Robert Cocomello (NY) nominated Pietro Geraci.

Rob Latham (UT) nominated Richard Longstreth.

Evan McMahon (IN) nominated Boomer Shannon.

Clayton Hunt (TX) nominated James Weeks.

Erin Adams (OK) nominated Geoffrey Neale.

Becca Congdon (TX) nominated Omar Recuero.

Timothy Perkins (OR) nominated Caryn Ann Harlos.

Liz DelSignore (NV) nominated Richard Fast.

Michael Graves (NJ) nominated Mike Rufo.

Steven Babka (OH) nominated Steve Dasbach. Mr. Dasbach declined the
nomination.

Michael Chianese (WI) nominated Alex Merced. Mr. Merced declined the
nomination.

Jacob Lamont (WA) nominated Starchild. Starchild declined the nomination.
Jeff Douglas (PA) nominated Andy Jacobs.

Tony D’Orazio (NY) nominated Pat Ford.

Emily Goldberg (AZ) nominated Alex Flores.

David Valente (WV) moved to close nominations.

Mr. Merced ruled the motion OUT OF ORDER as there were still delegates wishing to make
nominations.

e Dane Posner (CA) nominated Desarae Lindsey.
e Kevin Kahn (OH) nominated Nathan Weise.
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James Ogle (CA) nominated himself. The nomination was ruled OUT OF ORDER as Mr. Ogle
is not a seated delegate and cannot make nominations.

¢ An unidentified (NY) delegate nominated Daniel Behrman.
David Valente (WV) moved to close nominations.
Mr. Merced asked for him to hold off as there was (1) more nomination pending.

o Pete Yeaple (CA) nominated Justin Amash. Congressman Amash declined the
nomination.

Matthew Long (CT) moved the previous question.
James Weeks (MI) nominated Brian Ellison.
Mr. Merced ruled that nomination OUT OF ORDER as the previous question had been called.

A poll was taken on whether or not to close the nominations for LNC At-Large Representatives
resulting in the following:

Shall we close nominations for LNC At-Large Representatives?

Yes 346
No 71

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to close nominations PASSED.

Nicholas Sarwark (NH) raised a point of parliamentary inquiry questioning the validity of
changing the method of voting for the LNC officers since the method is prescribed in the
bylaws which are not suspendable. Mr. Merced ruled that the method of voting is not
prescribed in the bylaws but in the convention rules which are suspendable. However,
RONRZ states that officers cannot be elected by a plurality absent a bylaws provision allowing
same. As such, if no one obtains a majority via approval voting in the LNC Vice-Chair and
LNC Secretary races, subsequent rounds would be needed until a majority was obtained.

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES - LIMIT VOTES ON APPROVAL VOTING BALLOTS
FOR AT-LARGE AND JUDICIAL COMMITTEE TO NUMBER OF OPEN SEATS

2 The exact reference was not cited by Mr. Merced, but it can be found on page 405, lines 2-6, to wit, “A plurality that is not a majority never
chooses a proposition or elects anyone to office except by virtue of a special rule previously adopted. if such a rule is to apply to the
election of officers, it must be prescribed in the bylaws.” (emphasis added)
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Nicholas Sarwark (NH) moved fo suspend the rules so that the voting method for At-Large
and Judicial Committee elections would be limited to the maximum number of five (5) for At-
Large and seven (7) for Judicial Committee.

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules so that the voting method for At-Large
and Judicial Committee elections would be limited to the maximum number of five (5) for At-
Large and seven (7) for Judicial Committee resulting in the following:

Shall we to suspend the rules so that the voting method for At-Large and Judicial Committee

elections would be limited to the maximum number of five (5) for At-Large and seven (7) for
Judicial Committee?

Yes 293

No 77

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules PASSED.

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — EXTENSION OF TIME

Wesley Pinchot (CO) moved to suspend the rules for consideration of adding additional
sessions to this convention or provide other ways for convention business to be completed.

At the suggestion of Mr. Merced, the motion was modified to extend time until 3:00 p.m.

A poll was taken on whether or not to extend time until 3:00 p.m. resulting in the following:

Shall we extend time until 3:00 p.m.?

Yes 291
No 102

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to extend time PASSED.
Scott Lieberman (CA) called for division.
Mr. Merced ruled the request OUT OF ORDER as dilatory.

Nominations for LNC Secretary were CLOSED WITHOUT OBJECTION.

ELECTION OF JUDICIAL COMMITTEE

JUDICAL COMMITTEE NOMINATIONS
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Floor nominations were opened for the Judicial Committee. There were seven (7) open seats.

e Erin Adams (OK) nominated Beth Vest.
e Mari Peele (FL) nominated Jim Turney.

Nominations for Judicial Committee were placed on hold in order to announce the results of
the LNC Vice-Chair election.

ELECTION OF LNC VICE-CHAIR (CONTD

ELECTION OF LNC VICE-CHAIR — ROUND ONE RESULTS

Election results for the LNC Vice-Chair race were presented with a review of state-by-state
results. At that time, it was discovered that several states had not corrected their numbers
after an Election Buddy error. The announcement of the results was delayed until that could
be corrected and submitted to the Teller Team.

CHAIR RACE CONCESSION SPEECHES (cont’d)

Joshua Smith was given a few minutes to give a concession speech to the convention.

ELECTION OF JUDICIAL COMMITTEE (CONTD

JUDICAL COMMITTEE NOMINATIONS (cont’d)
Floor nominations continued for the Judicial Committee as follows:

Emily Goldberg (AZ) nominated Roger Roots.
Debra Payne (NV) nominated Christopher Thrasher.
John Phillips (IL) nominated D. Frank Robinson.
Jon-Luc Tesky (FL) nominated Vermin Supreme.
Heidi Alejandro-Smith (CA) nominated Tricia Sprankle.
June Genis (CA) nominated Mary Gingell.

Mike Chianese (WI) nominated Phillip Anderson.
Tim Hagan (NV) nominated Mark Tuniewicz.

Emily Goldberg (AZ) nominated John Buttrick.

Dr. Chuck Mouton (PA) nominated himself.
Matthew Long (CT) nominated himself.

Susan Hogarth (NC) nominated Barbara Howe.
Geoff Neale (CA) nominated Dr. Mary Ruwart.
James Weeks (Ml) nominated Mark Whitney.?*

24 Mr. Whitney was not available to accept or decline the nomination.
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Alex Flores (AZ) nominated Michael Kielsky.
Ken Moellman (KY) nominated Chris Wiest.
Geoff Neale (CA) nominated Ruth Bennett.

Rob Stratton (WA) nominated Tyler Smith.
Timothy Perkins (OR) nominated Carolyn Wade.
Tyler Braaten (CA) nominated Alicia Mattson.
Clay Hunt (TX) nominated Nicholas Sarwark. Mr. Sarwark declined the nomination.
Joshua Eakle (TN) nominated Daniel Lewis.
Paige Sexton (TN) nominated Tom Arnold.

Mark Rutherford (IN) nominated Mike Dixon.
Dane Posner (CA) nominated Paul Grindle.

Eric Mulder nominated himself.

David Valente (WV) moved to close nominations for Judicial Committee.

A poll was taken on whether or not to close nominations for Judicial Committee resulting in
the following:

Shall we close nominations for Judicial Committee?

Yes 313
No 17

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to close nominations PASSED.
SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — LIMIT NOMINATION SPEECHES

Aaron Starr (CA) moved to suspend the rules to limit nomination speeches for JC and At-
Large from two (2) minutes per candidate to one (1) minute per candidate.

Bruce Newman (NH) moved to divide the question. The motion DIED for lack of a second.

A poll was taken on whether or not to limit nomination speeches for JC and At-Large from two
(2) minutes per candidate to one (1) minute per candidate resulting in the following:

Shall we fill limit nomination speeches for JC and At-Large from two (2) minutes per

candidate to one (1) minute per candidate?
Yes 346
No 42

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.
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The motion to suspend the rules PASSED.

WITHOUT OBJECTION, the convention entered into a ten (10) minute recess.

ELECTION OF LNC VICE-CHAIR (CONTD

Corrected election results for the LNC Vice-Chair race were presented with a review of state-
by-state results. prior to displaying the following totals:

LNC VICE-CHAIR — ROUND ONE

Candidate Votes Percent
Tony D’Orazio 201 | 23.70%
Jacob Lamont 137 | 16.16%
Richard Longstreth 395 | 46.58%
Ken Moellman 434 | 51.18% | *ELECTED*
Geoffrey Neale 185 | 21.82%
James Ogle 20| 2.36%
Steve Scheetz 0 0%
Jeff Wood 37| 4.36%
Write-In: Trisha Butler 1 12%
Write-In: Rachel Johnson 4 A7%
Write-In: Brandon Nelson 1 12%
Write-In: Valerie Sarwark 9 1.06%
Write-In: Vermin Supreme 2 24%
Write-In: James Weeks 1 12%
NOTA 30| 3.54%

TOTALS:

TOTAL BALLOTS:

The state-by-state subtotals are represented in Appendix C.

Having received a majority of the 848 ballots, Ken Moellman was ELECTED as LNC Vice-
Chair.

INCOMING VICE-CHAIR ACCEPTANCE SPEECH
Ken Moellman addressed the convention for a few minutes.
SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — ELIMINATE NOMINATION SPEECHES

Aaron Starr (CA) moved to suspend the rules to eliminate nomination speeches for At-Large
and Judicial Committee.

An unidentified delegate moved to divide the question.
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The question was DIVIDED.

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to eliminate nomination speeches for
At-Large resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to eliminate nomination speeches for At-Large?

Yes 275
No 75

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules PASSED.

An unidentified delegate moved for division. Mr. Merced ruled the motion OUT OF ORDER
as dilatory.

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to eliminate nomination speeches for
Judicial Committee resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to eliminate nomination speeches for Judicial Committee?

Yes 299
No 52

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules PASSED.

Wes Pinchot (CO) moved to suspend the rules to allow thirty (30) seconds for nominating
speeches for At-Large and Judicial Committee.

Mr. Merced ruled the motion OUT OF ORDER as dilatory.
SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — EXTENSION OF TIME
At the request of the Chair, the rules were suspended and time was extended until 4:00 p.m.
Nicholas Sarwark (NH) raised a POINT OF ORDER that it was not necessary to wait for the
results of the Secretary race to start ballots for At-Large and Judicial Committee as the Chair

previously stated. Mr. Merced ruled the point of order WELL-TAKEN.

The convention stood at ease for ten (10) minutes.
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While the convention stood at ease, Starchild (CA) asked to read the text of a resolution that
he intended to move for consideration later. It was permitted.?®> Other announcements were
also made.

Mr. Merced stated that although it was in order to proceed with the additional ballots at this
time, as there was overlap in candidates, and this convention belonged to the delegates and
not to him or anyone else, he inquired of the will of the delegates in this matter.

A poll was taken on whether or not to start balloting for At-Large and Judicial Committee
simultaneously while awaiting the results of the Secretary race resulting in the following:

Shall we start balloting for At-Large and Judicial Committee simultaneously while awaiting

the results of the Secretary race?
Yes 244
No 48

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to start balloting PASSED.

ELECTION OF LNC SECRETARY (CONTD

25 The text read as follows:

Whereas the Libertarian Party stands in defense of the individual and in opposition to the cult of the omnipotent state; and

Whereas influenza (the common seasonal flu) kills an estimated 290,00 to 600,000 people a year worldwide, while Covid-19 has killed fewer
than 600,00 people worldwide; and

Whereas places like Sweden and Japan where government lockdown measures have largely been avoided have not experienced
significantly if any higher reported death rates from Covid-19 than other jurisdictions which have adopted stringent authoritarian lockdowns;
and

Whereas the maijority of deaths in many countries have occurred in nursing and convalescent homes and similar facilities, and the average
age of victims has often been over 80; and

Whereas many reported death tolls have been exaggerated by systematically recording people who have died WITH the virus as having died
FROM the virus, even when they had other co-morbidities or serious pre-existing conditions which may have been the primary causes of
death; and

Whereas hospitals have been given Federal grant money for reporting Covid deaths as well as higher insurance compensation rates for Covid
related deaths, thereby incentivizing them to attribute deaths to the virus; and

Whereas the reported “surges” or “second waves” in the number of new cases can be mainly attributed to increased testing, especially of
people in hospitals; and

Whereas Libertarians see the death and suffering caused by government lockdowns, unemployment, and business closures, including higher
suicide rates, increased domestic violence, and health conditions related to isolation, loneliness and stress; and

Whereas the damage to the world economy as a result of the lockdowns, restrictions on trade and travel, and increased government spending
and debt have been incalculable;

Therefore be it resolved that the Libertarian Party of the United States calls upon governments around the world as well as here in the U.S. to
immediately end their virus-related lockdowns, restrictions and bailouts, open their borders, open their economies, and cease their violations
of basic human and civil rights in the name of public safety.
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ELECTION OF LNC SECRETARY — ROUND ONE RESULTS - FINAL

Election results for the LNC Secretary race were presented with a review of state-by-state
results prior to displaying the following totals:

LNC SECRETARY — ROUND ONE

Candidate Votes Percent
Caryn Ann Harlos 461 | 51.80% | *ELECTED*
Dave Jones 74| 8.31%
Evan McMahon 417 | 46.85%
Tim Ferreira 1 11%

Write-In: Andrew Chadderdon 1 11%
Write-In: Frankie Mermaid 2 22%
Write-In: Elon Musk 1 11%
1
1

Write-In: Emily Salvette A1%
Write-In: 3 Small Children in 11%
a Trenchcoat

Write-In: Vermin Supreme 1 1%
Write-In: Jeff Wood 1 A11%
NOTA 25| 281%

TOTALS: 986

TOTAL BALLOTS: 890

The state-by-state subtotals are represented in Appendix D.

Having received a maijority of the 986 ballots, Caryn Ann Harlos was ELECTED as LNC
Secretary.?

ELECTION OF AT-LARGE AND JUDICIAL COMMITTEE (CONTD

Mr. Merced reviewed the instructions for these ballots as per various motions passed earlier.

Aaron Starr (CA) raised a POINT OF ORDER that as per Bylaws Article 10.7, NOTA is not a
valid option for Judicial Committee. An unidentified delegate and Nicholas Sarwark (NH) noted
that Convention Rule 9 would add NOTA as an option for Judicial Committee. Mr. Starr
conceded the point.

Ballots and tally sheets for the At-Large elections were distributed.

26 Ms. Harlos did not participate in any counting or auditing of ballots in the LNC Secretary race having put Head Teller Ashley Vinson in
supervision of same to avoid any appearance of impropriety as she was a candidate. Ms. Harlos remained unaware of the results until she
displayed them to the convention.
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Mr. Merced announced that there would be no LNC following adjournment and that it would
occur online at a later date to be determined.

Ballots and tally sheets for the Judicial Committee were distributed.

PLATFORM COMMITTEE REPORT

Sam Goldstein (IN) moved fo suspend the rules to immediately take up the Platform
Committee report.

Mr. Merced stated this would not be necessary as this is the next item on the agenda.

SUSPENSION THE RULES — RESOLUTION CONDEMING THE GOVERNMENT’S
RESPONSE TO COVID-19

Starchild (CA) moved fo suspend the rules to take up consideration of a resolution
condemning the government’s response to COVID-19.

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to take up consideration of a resolution
condemning the government’s response to COVID-19 resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to take up consideration of a resolution condemning the
government’s response to COVID-19?

Yes 73
No 270

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules FAILED.?”

Caryn Ann Harlos was recognized, as Chair of the Platform Committee, to begin presentation
of the Platform Committee report.

PLATFORM DELETION TOKENS

27 The LNC had previously passed a resolution on the COVD-19 crisis under Ballot 200508-1 as follows:
Whereas govemmental bodies in the ongoing COVID-19 crisis have stepped beyond their rightful powers, and

Whereas no person or organization can claim to hold the principles of liberty in times of peace and plenty who does not hold them as firmly in
times of emergency,

Be it therefore resolved that the Libertarian National Committee make known its opposition to tyranny in humanitarian’s clothing, affirming
that:

No "emergency,” whether declared or undeclared, shall be used as a pretext or justification for the limitation of any of the rights and freedoms
of the individual, or for the expansion of the powers of government or any of its agencies, representatives, or member institutions.
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An unidentified delegate raised a POINT OF ORDER that the platform deletion foken vote
needed to be taken up first.

Mr. Merced ruled the point of order WELL-TAKEN.
Brief announcements were heard while the platform deletion token totals were finalized.

Caryn Ann Harlos presented the platform deletion token results. Any plank that received 210
tokens would qualify for an non-debatable up/down deletion vote. The only plank that qualified
was plank 1.5 “Abortion” which received 1,041 tokens. A complete listing of the token totals
is listed in Appendix M.

A brief break was entered into in order to view a new Jo Jorgensen commercial.

A poll was taken on whether or not to delete Platform Plank 1.5 “Abortion” resulting in the
following:

Shall we delete Platform Plank 1.5 “Abortion”?

Yes 148
No 230

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The vote to delete Platform Plank 1.5 “Abortion” FAILED.?8
An unidentified delegate called for division.

Mr. Merced ruled the request OUT OF ORDER as dilatory.
SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — EXTENSION OF TIME

Mr. Merced inquired if there would be an objection to an extension of the rules to extend time
until 5:00 p.m. There was an OBJECTION.

Discussion was had over the implications of adjourning before the At-Large and Judicial
Committee results were announced. There is precedent (including in 2018) for announcing
results after adjournment when they are tabulated and audited by the Secretary and teller
team. It was noted that some states have not yet turned in their tally sheets.

A poll was taken on whether or not to extend time until 5:00 p.m. resulting in the following:

28 A history of the abortion plank and the platform deletion token history can be found at: hitps:/lpedia.org/wiki/Platform_Token_Deletion_Vote
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Shall we extend time until 5:00 p.m.?

Yes 220
No 150

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to extend time FAILED.

SUSPENSION OF THE RULES — TEMPORARY AMENDMENT TO BYLAWS ARTICLE
10.1

Will McVeigh (DE) moved to suspend the rules to amend the Party Bylaws Article 10.1 which
requires all business to be conducted at Regular Conventions to amend that articles with a
temporary provision expiring at the end of 2020 allowing the LNC to call a special online
convention of all credentialed 2020 regular convention delegates to complete the business
called for in Rule 1 of the Convention Rules of Order for 2020 including the online and in-
person delegates.?®

The Convention Secretary gave an update on the anticipated time frames for the results of
the At-Large and Judicial Committee elections that were well over an hour due to the teller
team operating as a skeleton crew since the convention has gone way over time.

A poll was taken on whether or not to suspend the rules to temporarily amend Bylaws Article
10.1 resulting in the following:

Shall we suspend the rules to temporarily amend Bylaws Article 10.17?

Yes 172
No [inaudible on recording]

After the poll was closed, a rising vote was taken of the in-person delegates which was
combined with the results of the online poll.

The motion to suspend the rules FAILED.
Aaron Starr (CA) moved to adjoumn sine die.
Mr. Merced ruled the motion OUT OF ORDER since Mr. Starr was recognized under the

auspices of a privileged motion, and that was not a privileged motion and would need to wait
its turn.

29 The original motion had stated to consider the bylaws amendment for ten (10) minutes but at the advise of the Chair due calls for order of
the day, that portion was dropped.
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Mr. Merced asked if there would be an objection to adjourning at 4:00 p.m. under the
agreement that the election tabulation would continue until the results were finished, and that
the elections results would be what they are reported. There was an OBJECTION.

Nicholas Sarwark (NH) raised a POINT OF ORDER that it requires no vote of the body for the
election tabulation to continue and for the results to be official. Mr. Merced ruled the point of
order WELL-TAKEN.

CONVENTION SECOND SITTING DAY 4— ADJOURNMENT SINE DIE

The fourth (4*) day of the second (2") sitting of the convention adjourned sine die at 4:00
p.m.

PROCEDURAL ADDENDA ON POST-ADJOURNMENT ELECTION RESULTS

The incoming Chair Joseph Bishop-Henchman, Convention Secretary and returning LNC
Secretary Caryn Ann Harlos, and the teller team worked throughout the rest of the night to
tabulate and audit the At-Large and Judicial Committee results. When that was completed
they were declared to be preliminary and emailed to each Delegation Chair for verification to
simulate the process that would take place on the convention floor. Corrections were made
as needed. When each state was verified, the results were certified as final by the Secretary
and the Chair and posted on the Party website on July 14, 2020.3°

POST-ADJOURNMENT LNC AT-LARGE RESULTS

LNC AT-LARGE
Candidate Votes Percent
Laura Ebke 368 | 39.44% | *ELECTED*
Valerie Sarwark 353 | 37.83% | *ELECTED*
Joshua Smith 349 | 37.41% | *ELECTED*
Richard Longstreth 323 | 34.62% | *ELECTED*
Erik Raudsep 298 | 31.94% | *ELECTED*
Jacob Lamont 285 | 30.55%
Paige Sexton 277 | 29.69%
Bill Redpath 241 | 25.83%
Boomer Shannon 219 | 23.47%
Kenneth Brent Olsen 188 | 20.15%
Sam Goldstein 146 | 15.65%
Kieran O’'Se’ 133 | 14.26%
Geoff Neale 99 | 10.61%
Alicia Mattson 94 | 10.08%

30 https://www.Ip.org/inc-election-results/
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Dan Behrman 90 | 9.65%
Caryn Ann Harlos 83| 8.90%
Desarae Lindsay 82| 8.79%
Omar Recuero 74 | 7.93%
Darryl Perry 74| 7.93%
Richard Manzo 63| 6.75%
Pat Ford 56| 6.00%
Nathan Weise 35| 3.75%
Richard Fast 35| 3.75%
Pietro Geraci 34| 3.64%
James Weeks 29| 3.11%
Alex Flores 22| 2.36%
Mark Rufio 20| 214%
Henry Conoly 19| 2.04%
Andy Jacobs 8 .86%
Write-In: Ken Moellman 2 21%
Write-In: Evan McMahon 1 11%
Write-In: Jake Porter 1 11%
Write-In: Justin Amash 1 11%
Write-In: Carolyn Wade 1 A1%
Write-In: Chris Wiest 1 11%
Write-In: Brian Ellison 2 11%
Write-In: Alexandra Ocasio-Cortez 1 11%
Write-In: Tom Markey 1 A1%
Write-In: Rick Dawson 1 11%
Write-In: Aaron Starr 1 11%
NOTA 4 A43%
TOTALS: 4114

TOTAL BALLOTS: 933

The state-by-state subtotals are represented in Appendix E.

As per the motion passed earlier in the convention, the top five (5) plurality vote-getters in the
first (1%%) round of voting would be elected; therefore, Laura Ebke, Valerie Sarwark, Joshua
Smith, Richard Longstreth, and Erik Raudsep were ELECTED as LNC At-Large
Representatives.

POST-ADJOURNMENT JUDICIAL COMMITTEE RESULTS

JUDICIAL COMMITTEE
Candidate Votes Percent
Mary Ruwart 494 | 56.52% | *ELECTED*
Tom Arnold 378 | 43.25% | *ELECTED*
Jim Turney 303 | 34.67% | *ELECTED*

2020 NATIONAL CONVENTION | SECOND SITTING Page 70
ORLANDO, FLORIDA AND VIA ZOOM — FINAL



D. Frank Robinson 302 | 34.55% | *ELECTED*
Chuck Moulton 293 | 33.52% | *ELECTED*
Vermin Supreme 291 | 33.30% | *ELECTED*
Alicia Mattson 284 | 32.49% | *ELECTED*
Chris Wiest 226 | 25.86%
Tricia Sprankle 193 | 22.08%
Ruth Bennet 165 | 18.88%
Christopher Thrasher 126 | 14.42%
Best Vest 121 | 13.84%
Barbara Howe 120 | 13.73%
Tyler Smith 114 | 13.04%
Mary Gingell 110 | 12.59%
Eric Mulder 102 | 11.67%
Michael Dixon 92 | 10.53%
Mark Tuniewicz 85| 9.73%
Michael Kielsky 76| 8.70%
John Buttrick 75| 8.58%
Matthew Long 67| 7.67%
Roger Roots 67| 7.67%
Phillip Anderson 65| 7.44%
Carolyn Wade 63| 7.21%
Paul Grindle 62| 7.09%
Daniel Lewis 41 4.69%
Mark Whitney 27| 3.09%
Write-In: Carla Howell 7 .80%
Write-In: Nick Sarwark 2 23%
Write-In: Josh Smith 1 11%
Write-In: Jim Fulner 1 11%
Write-In: The Ghost of Jeffrey Tucker 1 A1%
Write-In: 3 Dogs in a Trenchcoat 1 1%
Write-In: Justin Amash 1 11%
Write-In: Laura Ebke 1 11%
Write-In: Ken Kaplan 1 1%
Write-In: Darryl Perry 1 A1%
Write-In: Jacob Lamont 1 11%
NOTA 29| 3.32%

TOTALS: 4,389

TOTAL BALLOTS: 874

The state-by-state subtotals are represented in Appendix F.

As per the motion passed earlier in the convention, the top seven (7) plurality vote-getters in
the first (1%!) round of voting would be elected; therefore, Mary Ruwart, Tom Amold, Jim
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APPENDIX A
STATE-BY-STATE DETAIL FOR LNC CHAIR ELECTION — ROUND ONE

Appendix A — State-by-State Detail for LNC Chair Election — Round One

Z o »

d¥ | 3 | & | & Z
STATE | G5 o - T Ww | TOTAL ALLOCATED

(4] . § I = 5 o

mT [ » 7 4
AL 5 0 0 1 6 0 0 12 13
AK 4 0 0 0 2 0 0 6 6
AZ 10 0 2 10 2 0 0 24 24
AR 3 0 0 0 4 0 0 7 7
CA 29 2 10 2 53 2 3 101 107
Cco 19 1 6 2 6 0 0 34 35
CT 2 2 0 0 8 0 1 13 13
DE 1 1 1 0 0 1 0 4 4
DC 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3
FL 16 0 1 1 33 0 3 54 54
GA 13 0 0 1 13 0 2 29 29
HI 2 0 0 1 1 0 0 4 5
ID 0 2 0 0 2 0 0 4 6
IL 16 1 2 2 5 0 1 27 37
IN 22 2 2 0 3 0 1 30 30
1A 5 0 0 2 3 0 1 11 11
KS 3 1 2 0 3 0 1 10 10
KY 1 1 2 0 7 0 0 11 11
LA 2 6 1 0 4 0 0 13 13
ME 5 0 0 0 2 0 0 7 8
MD 5 1 0 0 14 0 0 20 20
MA 15 1 0 1 5 0 0 22 22
MI 13 4 3 2 12 0 0 34 34
MN 6 0 1 0 7 1 3 18 20
MS 4 0 0 0 1 0 1 6 6
MO 8 1 0 1 4 0 0 14 19
MT 3 0 1 0 2 0 0 6 6
NE 5 0 0 0 3 0 0 8 8
NV 13 0 0 0 0 0 0 13 13
NH 10 0 0 0 0 1 0 11 11
NJ 2 3 2 1 11 0 1 20 20
NM 9 0 0 0 4 0 0 13 13
NY 8 24 1 2 8 0 0 43 48
NC 9 5 3 1 7 0 0 25 29
ND 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 4
OH 16 5 0 1 9 2 2 35 45
oK 0 2 0 0 11 0 1 14 14
OR 4 2 0 0 7 0 0 13 15
PA 20 1 0 2 15 0 0 38 40
Rl 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 3 3
SC 10 2 0 1 1 0 0 14 17
SD 2 0 1 0 2 0 0 5 5
N 19 0 1 0 2 0 1 23 23
X 34 8 6 3 13 0 5 69 73
ut 4 2 1 1 1 0 0 9 9
VT 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 3
VA 23 2 0 0 9 0 0 34 35
WA 5 1 9 0 1 0 0 26 35
wv 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 6 6
wi 6 2 1 0 7 0 0 16 20
wYy 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4

WRITE-INS (7):
Dulap Nelson (6) | Alex Merced (1)
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APPENDIX B

STATE-BY-STATE DETAIL FOR LNC CHAIR ELECTION — ROUND TWO

Appendix B — State-by-State Detail for LNC Chair Election — Round Two

(7]
Z

E ||.|=J ﬁ TOTAL ALLOCATED

> | 2] 8

379 5 57

5 0 1 12 13
AK 4 2 0 0 6 6
AZ 20 4 0 0 24 24
AR 3 4 0 0 7 7
CA 33 57 0 4 94 107
co 27 8 0 0 35 35
CT 2 1 0 0 13 13
DE 4 0 0 0 4 4
DC 3 0 0 0 3 3
FL 16 M 0 4 54 54
GA 12 15 0 2 29 29
HI 2 1 0 0 3 5
ID 3 2 0 0 5 6
I 19 8 0 0 27 37
IN 23 7 0 0 30 30
1A 6 5 0 0 11 1
KS 4 4 0 2 10 10
KY 1 8 0 2 1 1
LA 6 6 0 1 13 13
ME 6 2 0 0 8 8
MD 6 14 0 0 20 20
MA 16 5 0 0 21 22
Mi 18 14 6 2 34 34
MN 10 6 0 0 16 20
MS 4 1 0 1 6 6
MO 10 5 0 1 16 19
MT 3 3 0 0 6 6
NE 5 3 0 0 8 8
NV 13 0 0 0 13 13
NH 1 0 0 0 11 1
NJ 3 15 0 2 20 20
NM 9 4 0 0 13 13
NY 15 15 4 8 42 48
NC 16 1 0 2 29 29
ND 1 1 0 0 2 4
OH 20 8 0 6 34 45
OK 0 13 0 1 14 14
OR 5 7 0 1 13 15
PA 23 14 0 0 37 40
RI 0 2 0 1 3 3
SC 13 0 0 0 13 17
SD 2 3 0 0 5 5
TN 20 2 0 1 23 23
X 48 14 0 9 71 73
ut 7 1 0 1 9 9
VT 1 1 0 0 2 3
VA 23 8 0 1 32 35
WA 1 20 0 2 33 35
wv 5 0 0 1 6 6
wi 6 6 1 1 14 20
wYy 4 0 0 0 4 4
WRITE-INS (5):
Tony D’'Orazio (4) | Nicholas Sarwark (1)
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APPENDIX C

STATE-BY-STATE DETAIL FOR LNC VICE-CHAIR ELECTION — ONE ROUND APPROVAL VOTING

Appendix C — State-by-State Detail for LNC Vice-Chair Election — Round One — Approval
Voting

E
(o] u (2} TOTAL
STATE 5 £ 0 w E = JOTAL | galiors | ALLOCATED
o 0] 4 | w |Wm|8 w g VOTES | cast
o =z T 13|58 E|l g
o) § S z 3 |8 |2 E g
201 137 395 43 185 0 0 7 18 0 848
AL 3 0 3 7 1 0 0 0 0 0 14 8 13
AK 0 0 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 6 6
AZ 2 2 20 6 5 0 0 1 0 0 36 23 24
AR 0 1 1 5 3 0 0 0 0 0 10 7 7
CA 14 15 21 45 21 4 0 6 5 1 132 76 107
co 6 7 23 10 7 0 0 1 1 5 60 35 35
cT 1 0 4 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 12 13
DE 0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 4 4 4
DC 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 3
FL 8 8 14 23 7 1 0 1 0 0 62 40 54
GA 2 2 8 15 3 0 0 1 0 0 3 20 29
HI 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 3 5
ID 1 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 6
I 6 2 1 10 4 0 0 1 0 1 35 21 37
IN 12 4 14 14 5 0 0 0 0 1 50 30 30
1A 2 0 7 4 5 0 0 0 0 2 20 1 11
KS 2 1 6 4 8 0 0 2 0 0 23 10 10
KY 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 11 1
LA 10 2 5 10 4 1 0 0 0 0 32 13 13
ME 3 1 5 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 8 8
MD 6 0 2 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 19 17 20
MA 8 1 10 9 4 2 0 0 0 0 34 15 22
Mi 7 10 16 22 8 6 0 5 2 0 76 34 34
MN 0 4 7 7 3 0 0 0 0 2 23 13 20
MS 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 6
MO 2 4 4 10 4 0 0 1 0 0 25 14 19
MT 0 0 1 4 1 0 0 0 0 0 6 5 6
NE 0 0 6 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 8 8
NV 2 1 13 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 19 13 13
NH 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 10 10 11
NJ 2 4 4 13 1 0 0 0 0 1 25 17 20
NM 2 2 6 2 1 0 0 0 0 0 13 1 13
NY 26 5 10 17 0 0 0 1 0 3 62 31 48
NC 3 4 16 8 4 0 0 0 0 0 35 24 29
ND 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 4
OH 11 6 13 20 9 1 0 2 0 3 65 30 45
OK 2 2 7 9 2 0 0 0 1 1 24 14 14
OR 4 1 7 9 2 0 0 0 0 0 23 12 15
PA 7 3 1 16 12 1 0 5 0 5 60 38 40
RI 1 0 1 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 3 3
SC 7 4 7 5 0 0 0 1 0 0 24 10 17
sD 0 3 3 2 4 0 0 0 0 0 12 5 5
TN 5 3 15 9 3 0 0 1 2 0 38 23 23
X 13 9 34 24 30 1 0 5 0 2 118 62 73
ur 3 2 8 1 3 0 0 0 0 1 18 9 9
vT 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 3
VA 4 2 17 17 8 0 0 2 0 0 50 25 35
WA 2 16 12 14 3 0 0 0 0 0 47 29 35
wv 1 1 6 3 0 0 0 1 0 0 12 6 6
wi 4 1 6 8 0 0 0 0 0 1 20 14 20
wYy 3 3 3 0 3 3 0 0 0 0 15 3 4
WRITE-INS (18):
Trisha Butler (1) | Rachel Johnson (4) | Brandon Nelson (1) | Valerie Sarwark (9) | Vermin Supreme (2) | James Weeks (1)0
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APPENDIX D

STATE-BY-STATE DETAIL FOR LNC SECRETARY ELECTION — ONE ROUND APPROVAL VOTING

Appendix D — State-by-State Detail for LNC Secretary Election — Round One — Approval
Voting

=z 2]

o | =2 TOTAL
STATE a % W TOTAL BgLLOTS ALLOCATED

w | 2 | E| g | VOTES | casr
] [*]
Qa = E z
46 74 417 9 5

AL 5 0 4 0 0 9 8 13
AK 6 0 1 0 0 7 6 6
AZ 4 0 22 0 2 28 24 24
AR 6 0 2 0 0 8 7 7
CA 54 6 26 2 4 92 81 107
CcCO 10 6 24 0 2 42 35 35
CT 11 0 1 0 0 12 11 13
DE 4 0 0 0 0 4 4 4
DC 0 0 3 0 0 3 3 3
FL 34 2 12 0 1 49 47 54
GA 13 2 8 0 1 24 20 29
HI 3 0 1 0 0 4 3 5
ID 4 0 1 0 0 5 5 6
IL 8 5 12 0 0 25 23 37
IN 4 0 25 0 0 29 29 30
1A 6 1 4 0 0 11 11 11
KS 7 0 3 0 0 10 10 10
KY 10 0 2 0 0 12 11 11
LA 10 0 4 0 0 14 13 13
ME 3 0 3 0 1 7 7 8
MD 15 0 2 0 0 17 17 20
MA 6 7 12 0 0 25 20 22
Mi 14 4 18 5 1 42 34 34
MN 8 1 10 0 0 19 17 20
MS 1 0 4 0 0 5 4 6
MO 12 0 3 0 0 15 15 19
MT 3 0 3 0 0 6 6 6
NE 3 0 5 0 0 8 8 8
NV 0 0 13 0 0 13 13 13
NH 1 0 10 0 0 11 11 11
NJ 14 0 0 0 2 16 16 20
NM 3 0 10 0 0 13 13 13
NY 20 2 10 0 0 32 29 48
NC 14 0 15 0 1 30 29 29
ND 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
OH 10 3 22 0 3 38 M4 45
QK 13 0 1 2 0 16 14 14
OR 9 0 2 0 0 11 10 15
PA 17 4 20 0 1 42 39 40
RI 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 3
SC 7 1 9 0 0 17 13 17
SD 3 0 2 0 0 5 5 5
TN 6 12 14 0 0 32 23 23
X 27 9 39 0 3 78 68 73
uTt 3 0 5 0 1 9 9 9
vT 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 3
VA 14 0 15 0 0 29 27 35
WA 23 1 6 0 0 30 30 35
WV 2 1 5 0 0 8 6 6
Wi 8 7 0 0 0 15 14 20
WYy 1 0 4 0 0 5 4 4

WRITE-INS (9):
Andrew Chadderon (1) | Tim Ferreira (1) | Frankie Mermaid (2) | Elon Musk (1) | Emily Salvette (1) | Vermin Supreme (1)
Three Smalll Children in a Trenchcoat (1) | Jeff Wood (1)
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Appendix E — State-by-State Detail for LNC At-Large Election — Round One — Approval

Voting
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APPENDIX E

72
19
233
102
17
87
12
67
38
23
27
38
85
33
10
28
13
16
18
30
18
96
72
30
26
76
23
12
M
209
21
19
33
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52
11
10

23

13
21

17
23
20
22
17

21

43
12
14
18
22
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12

AR
CA
co
DE
DC
FL
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IN
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ME
MD
Mi
MN
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MO
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NE
NV
NH
NJ
NM
NC
ND
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OR
PA
RI
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SD
TN
ut
VA
WA
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13
107
13
37
11
10
11
13
20
20
19
13
11
20
13
14
15
17
23
73
20

1,

933
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9
86
11
27
11
11
13
17
18
16
19
13
11
19
13
28
14
10
1
25
23
27
16

4,114
7]
12
412
172
18
15
216
o7
15
20
118
133
37
21
85
88
164
70
19
51
a7
7
51
153
12
167
a7
170
25
o7
313
3
134
132
26
76
20

2,128
20
26
72
19

233
102
17
87
12
67
23
27
85
10
28
13
16
18
18
96
72
26
76
23
12
A
209
21
19

1,986
21
16

179
70
12

129
13
15
14
20
13
47
37
23
11
16
47
25
4
57
67
95
21
23
13

104
10
12

10

349

5
15
13
1
12
1
1
12
16
13
1
20
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1
12
15
10
10
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0
10
13
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10
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1
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HI
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Justin Amash (1) | Rick Dawson (1) | Brian Ellison (2) | Evan McMahon (1) | Tom Markey (1) | Ken Moellman (2) | Alexandra Ocasio-Cortez (1)

Jake Porter (1) | Aaron Starr (1) | Carolyn Wade (1) | Christopher Wiest (1)
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Appendix F — State-by-State Detail for Judicial Committee Election — Round One — Approval

STATE-BY-STATE DETAIL FOR LNC JUDICAL COMMITTEE ELECTION — ONE ROUND APPROVAL VOTING
Voting

APPENDIX F

108
2n
147
38
10
12
116
51
1
19
85
26
30
32
80
128
18
15
30
21
120
87
35
119
39
19
93
233
79
121
18
67
20
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10
10
10

13
20
12
10
17
1
27
15
16
19
16
16
1
27
13

33
1
1
10
1
1
14
15
15
20

28

27
14
10
13
10
12

12
14
1
15
12
1

18

20
16
1
1

35
17
10
12
14
10
10
18
15
23
18
10

AR
CA
co
DE
DC
FL
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HI
ID
IL
IN
KS
ME
MD
Mi
MN
MS
MO
NE
NV
NH
NJ
NM
NC
ND
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OK
OR
PA
RI
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SD
TN
ut
VA
WA
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APPENDIX F

STATE-BY-STATE DETAIL FOR LNC JUDICAL COMMITTEE ELECTION — ONE ROUND APPROVAL VOTING

@
é o ﬂ 9 fa
0 5 s w
AR 5 | (5| (B [ (2 |3 | 3
B |3 ¢ 21z |5 |8 |E|B |E|& |3 I 2 2 <]
12 2|18 E 5 |E |58 MR
b & ? [ P P g 2 E 2 - N 8 - - <
AL 1 3 1 1 2 2 0 0 0 0 0 10 19 29 7 13
AK 0 0 1 0 2 1 0 0 5 0 0 9 24 33 6 6
AZ 0 1 1 0 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 19 108 127 24 24
AR 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
CA 16 19 8 2 42 15 5 0 28 1 1 137 277 414 79 107
CO 9 17 4 6 11 2 2 5 5 0 0 61 147 208 35 35
CT 0 2 4 0 5 1 0 2 1 2 0 17 38 55 1 13
DE 2 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 1 0 1 8 10 18 4 4
DC 2 0 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 12 17 3 3
FL 11 19 4 12 29 1 0 0 6 0 1 83 116 199 45 54
GA 0 4 6 0 6 1 3 1 4 0 0 25 51 76 13 29
HI 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 5 11 16 3 5
D 2 2 0 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 0 10 19 29 5 6
IL 6 13 16 1 5 1 1 0 2 4 0 49 56 105 21 37
IN 9 4 18 4 5 5 1 3 13 0 3 65 85 150 28 30
1A 0 3 1 0 1 1 1 1 4 0 1 13 45 58 11 11
KS 0 4 1 2 2 1 0 0 1 0 1 12 26 38 9 10
KY 4 0 3 0 3 3 0 0 1 0 0 24 30 54 1 1
LA 3 8 1 0 3 1 0 2 1 0 0 29 32 61 13 13
ME 1 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 8 6 14 5 8
MD 0 2 0 0 13 0 0 0 10 0 0 25 80 105 18 20
MA 4 7 2 6 7 1 2 0 7 0 0 36 59 95 18 22
Mi 5 12 2 7 12 3 1 0 10 3 1 56 128 184 34 34
MN 4 11 1 0 1 5 4 1 2 0 0 29 48 77 16 20
MS 0 3 1 0 0 5 0 1 0 0 0 10 18 28 28 6
MO 1 2 1 1 3 1 0 1 2 0 0 12 34 46 10 19
MT 0 1 0 0 1 3 1 0 1 1 0 8 15 23 6 6
NE 1 3 1 1 2 3 2 0 1 0 0 14 30 44 8 8
NV 5 0 5 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 5 23 34 57 13 13
NH 5 3 0 3 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 14 21 35 1 1
NJ 0 7 0 0 8 0 0 1 6 1 0 23 50 73 16 20
NM 4 3 4 0 3 3 5 0 2 0 0 24 42 66 12 13
NY 6 16 6 0 7 5 2 0 4 1 0 47 120 167 32 48
NC 8 8 3 4 9 0 0 0 3 0 3 38 94 132 28 29
ND 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4
OH 27 1 3 3 6 3 3 0 23 0 0 79 87 166 32 45
OK 3 1 0 6 9 8 0 1 9 3 0 40 48 88 14 14
OR 2 3 0 0 7 1 6 0 3 0 0 22 35 57 9 15
PA 8 19 4 2 7 2 2 1 15 0 2 62 119 181 40 40
Rl 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 3 5 8 3 3
SC 6 7 0 2 2 1 1 0 1 0 0 20 39 59 13 17
SD 0 5 1 5 2 0 0 3 0 0 0 16 19 35 5 5
TN 0 13 3 1 6 0 1 3 3 0 0 30 93 123 23 23
X 21 20 3 4 28 13 6 0 12 0 6 113 233 346 66 73
uT 2 0 1 1 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 10 34 44 9 9
VT 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 5 7 1 3
VA 4 8 2 1 1 8 6 0 9 0 1 50 79 129 23 35
WA 3 8 3 0 15 0 2 1 11 0 0 43 121 164 27 35
wv 2 3 2 1 2 2 1 0 0 0 0 13 18 N 6 6
wi 5 2 2 0 5 3 2 0 4 0 0 23 67 20 16 20
wYy 0 0 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 20 28 4 4

WRITE-INS (18):
Justin Amash (1) | Laura Ebke (1) | Jim Fulner (1) | The Ghost of Benjamin Tucker (1)| Carla Howell (7) | Ken Kaplan (1) | Jacob Lamont (1)
Darryl Perry (1) | Nicholas Sarwark (2) | Joshua Smith (1) | Three Dogs in a Trenchcoat (1)
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LIBERTARIAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2018
(WITH 2017 COMPARATIVE TOTALS)

2018 2017
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,728 $ 156,281
Bequests receivable, net 141,161 210,493
Prepaid expenses and other 3,861 37,003
Property and equipment:
Land 347,881 347,881
Building and improvements 528,570 528,570
Furniture and equipment 63,206 63,206
Computer equipment 22,801 22,801
Computer software 109,771 84,645
Property and equipment, at cost 1,072,229 1,047,103
Accumulated depreciation (233,372) (209,105)
Property and equipment, net 838,857 837,998
Total Assets $ 997,607 $ 1,241,775
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Unsecured lines of credit $ 12,257 $ -
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 111,792 27,581
Accrued salaries and related benefits 11,132 9,073
Accrued vacation 12,583 21,174
Deferred registrations 10,250 101,728
Capital lease liabilities 3,765 10,698
Mortgage payable 207,018 236,318
Total liabilities 368,797 406,572
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 620,875 827,529
With donor restrictions 7,935 7,674
Total net assets 628,810 835,203
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 997,607 $ 1,241,775
See accompanying auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
3
2020 NATIONAL CONVENTION | SECOND SITTING Page 97

ORLANDO, FLORIDA AND VIA ZOOM — FINAL



APPENDIX H
2018 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIBERTARTAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
& CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(WITH 2017 COMPARATIVE TOTALS)

2018
Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total 2017
Revenue and Support
Contributions and membership $ 1,327,719 $ 6,430 $ 1,334,149 $ 1,428,683
Convention and other events 369,830 - 369,830 90,832
Political campaign materials 67,852 - 67,852 61,902
Sponsorships and classifieds 210 - 210 6,344
Interest and dividends 1,395 - 1,395 627
Net assets released from restrictions:
Building, legal, and other funds 6,169 (6,169) - -
Total revenue and support 1,773,175 261 1,773,436 1,588,388
Expense
Program services:
Communications and membership 533,504 - 533,504 368,458
Conventions and events 303,555 - 303,555 14,577
Campaign programs 230,901 - 230,901 63,889
Ballot access 168,089 - 168,089 151,575
Special projects 90,679 - 90,679 -
Brand development 73,524 - 73,524 110,731
Affiliate support 69,364 - 69,364 72,348
Outreach programs 49,080 - 49,080 50,951
Media relations 34,011 - 34,011 15,961
Litigation and lobbying 4,341 - 4,341 4,979
Campus outreach 1,639 - 1,639 3,477
Total program services 1,558,687 - 1,558,687 856,946
Supporting services:
Management and general 171,504 - 171,504 286,448
Fundraising and donor acquisition 249,638 - 249,638 492,690
Total supporting services 421,142 - 421,142 779,138
Total expense 1,979,829 - 1,979,829 1,636,084
Change in Net Assets (206,654) 261 (206,393) (47,696)
Net assets, beginning of year 827,529 7,674 835,203 882,899
Net Assets, End of Year $ 620,875 $ 7,935 $ 628,810 $ 835,203

See accompanying auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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LIBERTARIAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018
(WITH 2017 COMPARATIVE TOTALS)

2018 2017

Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ (206393) $ (47,696)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 24,266 24,265
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Bequests receivable 69,332 (43,670)
Prepaid expenses and other 33,142 (9,104)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 96,468 3,420
Accrued salaries and related benefits 2,059 (2,382)
Accrued vacation (8,591) (12,628)
Deferred registrations (91,478) 101,728
Total adjustments 125,198 61,629
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (81,195) 13,933
Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (25,125) -
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (25,125) -
Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities
Principal payments on capital lease liability (6,933) (6,659)
Principal payments on mortgage payable (29,300) (90,845)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities (36,233) (97,504)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (142,553) (83,571)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 156,281 239,852
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 13,728 $ 156,281

Supplemental Cash Flows Information:
Cash paid for income taxes $ - $ -
Cash paid for interest $ 12,256 $ 13,555

See accompanying auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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LIBERTARTAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Note A — Organization & Nature of Activities

Organization: The Libertarian National Committee, Inc. (the Committee) was founded in 1971 as
a national, tax-exempt political organization which is the operational arm of the Libertarian Party,
a grassroots political organization. The Committee was incorporated in February 1995 and its
affairs are directed by its National Board of Directors, who are elected by delegates bi-annually at
the national convention. The Committee, with the consent of the delegates, also establishes the
platform of the Libertarian Party, which is based upon the basic premises of civil liberties and
personal freedom, a free-market economy, free trade, and a foreign policy of non-intervention and
peace. The Committee has approximately 13,800 contributing members.

Programs: The Committee's program activities consist of affiliate support, which comprises
developing or supporting state and county affiliate parties; ballot access, which comprises getting
candidates on ballots and includes corresponding lawsuits required to accomplish such; brand
development, which is the process of developing an image in the minds of voters; campus outreach,
which represents campus recruiting and support groups; candidate support, which comprises
recruiting and supporting candidates with their electoral ambitions; litigation support, which
includes proactive lawsuits to change public policy, other than ballot access; lobbying, which
includes efforts to persuade legislators to change laws, including ballot access laws; media
relations, which consists of direct communication with the media; member communications, which
is comprised of the Libertarian Party News periodical and other member communications;
outreach, which includes initiatives to reach the general public and outside groups; and voter
registration, which consist of voter registration campaign initiatives.

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting and Presentation: The Committee prepares its financial statements on the
accrual basis of accounting. Consequently, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses when
obligations are incurred. The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total and not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Committee’s financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2017, from which the summarized information was derived. Certain prior year information was
reclassified to adhere with the current financial statement presentation.

Income Tax Status: The Committee is recognized as a tax-exempt political organization under
Section 527 of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). Under IRC Section 527, the Committee’s exempt
functions include all activities that relate to and support the process of influencing or attempting
to influence the selection, nomination, election, or appointment of any individual to a public or
political office.
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LIBERTARTAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Note B — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Income Tax Status - Continued: Certain activities unrelated to the exempt purpose, such as net
investment income, are subject to taxation. During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
the Committee incurred no significant income tax expense on its net investment income, which
was under the specific deduction amount of $100 available on Form 1120-POL. Although the
Committee has not received any notice of intent to examine its tax returns, the Committee’s tax
returns remain subject to examination by tax authorities pursuant to various statutes of limitation.
The Committee is also subject to oversight by the Federal Election Commission.

Revenue Recognition: Contributions and donations and bequests and legacies are recorded when
received or when the unconditional promise-to-give is known at the earliest point determinable
and measurable. They are recorded by the Committee as increases its nets assets without donor
restrictions or net assets with donor restrictions based upon the existence or lack of donor-imposed
restrictions. Any restricted amounts received and release from restriction in the same reporting
period are reported as net assets without donor restrictions. Restricted resources from prior years
in which the Committee meets the donor’s restriction during the current year are reflected as net
assets released from restrictions. Donated goods or contributed services meeting the requirements
for recognition under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America are
reported at fair value at the time of donation. The Committee treats membership dues as
contributions and donations in the accompanying financial statements given that members receive
de minimis benefits in exchange for their dues. Revenue from contributions and donations are
recognized at the earliest point an unconditional promise-to-give is both determinable and
measurable. Revenue from conditional promises-to-give are recognized as the donor or grantor’s
conditions are substantially met. Revenue from any program service activities and conventions
and events are recognized when earned.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For financial statement presentation purposes, the Committee
considers highly liquid debt instruments with maturities of three months or less, including money
market funds, to be cash equivalents. The Committee periodically has cash balances in excess of
federal insurance limits available for depository accounts.

Bequests Receivable: The Committee’s bequests receivable consist of amounts due from decedent
members’ last wills and testaments. The most significant bequest pertains to a deceased member’s
unconditional promise-to-give the Committee a portion of the estate after liquidation of debts and
payment of expenses. The Committee’s portion of the net estate was determined to be
approximately $235,600, which was transfer to a trustee and is being held in trust for the benefit
of the Committee given the annual contribution limits allowable under Federal Election
Commission (FEC) guidelines. The trustee and escrow agent is annually releasing the amount
allowable under FEC guidelines to the Committee. The remaining funds resulting from the
distributions from the decedent’s estate is being held in trust at a federally insured financial
institution in money market funds for the benefit of the Committee.
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LIBERTARTAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Note B — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Bequests Receivable — Continued: The Committee received approximately $68,800 and $33,900,
respectively, from the trustees holding the bequests during the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017. The remaining bequest reflected at its net realizable value, which was determined by
the Committee by initially discounting the initial bequest by an allowance for doubtful accounts
and present value discount. Given the nature of the bequest and that the funds are being held in
interest bearing accounts for the benefit of the Committee, the Committee determined that
discounts for present value and collectability were unnecessary.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets: The Committee’s prepaid expenses and other assets consist
principally of prepaid rent, insurance, licenses, promotional supplies, and refundable deposits.

Property and Equipment: The Committee capitalizes property and equipment acquisitions at cost
or fair value at time of donation and depreciates these items using the straight-line method of
depreciation over their estimated useful lives, which range from approximately 3 to 5 years for
furniture, equipment, and software and 15 to 39 years for building and related improvements.
Expenditures for repairs and maintenance that do not extend the useful life of an asset, consumable
supplies, and de minimis items are expensed as incurred. Depreciation and amortization expense
was approximately $24,300 and $24,300, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2018 and
2017. No significant loss on the dispositions or impairment of property and equipment was
reported by the Committee during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2018.

Deferred Rent: The Committee recognizes rent expense on its long-term operating leases on a
straight-line basis. A deferred rent liability is reflected for the effects of rent escalation clauses
and the difference between actual rental payments and the straight-line amortization. The
Committee reported no leases with significant remaining escalations as of December 31, 2018.

Net Assets: The Committee classifies its net assets based upon the existence or lack of donor-
imposed restrictions. When the Committee receives contributions that are restricted by the donor
or limited as to their use and the Committee has not met the donor’s restriction by the end of the
reporting year, then the Committee reports these amounts as net assets with donor restrictions.
Restricted net assets in which the Committee has met the donor’s stipulations during the fiscal year
are reflected as net assets released from restrictions in the accompanying financial statements. Any
restricted amounts received and released from restriction in the same reporting period are reported
as net assets without donor restrictions. The components of the Committee’s net assets are as
follows:
s Without donor restrictions — Represents unrestricted resources that are available to support
the Commiittee’s operations at the discretion of the Board of Directors and management.
s With donor restrictions — Represents amounts received and restricted by donors to support
specific Committee programs and initiatives, such as the building fund, ballot access,
candidacy initiatives, and college campus programs.
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LIBERTARTAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Note B — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Net Assets — Continued:
Net assets with donor restrictions are released from restriction either by the passage of time
or by the Committee meeting the donors’ stipulations. The Committee reported net assets
with donor restrictions of approximately $7,900 and $7,700, respectively, as of December
31, 2018 and 2017, earmarked by the original donors for specific program initiatives.

Contributions and Donations: Contributions and donations are recognized at fair value in the
period in which an unconditional promise-to-give is known or when a contribution is received, at
the earliest point the contribution is both determinable and measurable by the Committee.
Contributions are recognized as revenue and support without donor restrictions or with donor
restrictions based upon the existence or lack of donor-imposed restrictions. Contributions and
donations with donor-imposed restrictions in which the Committee has met the donor’s
stipulations are reflected as net assets released from restrictions. Revenue and support with donor
restrictions in which the Committee met the donor-imposed restriction during the same fiscal year
as the contribution are reflected as revenue and support without donor restrictions. Conditional
promises-to-give are recognized when the conditions set forth by the donor are substantially met.

Intentions-to-Give: The Committee receives commitment cards from members who many times
provide their credit card information for future contribution purposes. The members are generally
making recurring contributions to the Committee and do not commit to a specific number of
payments or period of time for which the Committee may charge the recurring gifts. The members
may also decline the charges or request that the Committee cease making charges against their
credit card at any time and completely at their discretion. The Committee treats these recurring
contributions as intentions-to-give or conditional promises to give and as such, revenue is not
recognized until the contribution is both determinable and measurable, which generally occurs
when the credit card is processed and receipt received by the Committee.

Functional Allocation of Expenses: The Committee summarizes the cost of providing its various
programs and activities on a functional basis in the accompanying financial statements.
Accordingly, certain expenses were allocated to the program and supporting services benefited as
reflected in the statement of functional expenses. Expenses are allocated on a reasonable basis that
is consistently applied by management. Expenses that are allocated include compensation and
benefits, which are allocated based upon estimates of time and efforts devoted to the functional
categories, while joint costs are allocated based upon the percentage of communications devoted
to functional categories. Significant estimates are required to functionally allocate expenses and
to allocate joint costs to the program and supporting services benefited.

Fair Value Measurements: The Committee established a reporting framework for measuring and
disclosing fair value measurements. Fair value measurement disclosures are required for assets
and liabilities measured and reported at fair value in the accompanying financial statements.

10
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LIBERTARTAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Note B — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Fair Value Measurements — Continued: The Committee determines fair value using a hierarchy
based upon the lowest level of any input that is significant to the measurement with Level 3 being
the lowest recognized level. The Corporation attempts to maximize the use of observable inputs
(Level 1 and 2) and minimize unobservable inputs (Level 3). Accordingly, the Committee would
classify financial instruments measured at fair value in any of the following categories: Level 1,
which refers to instruments traded in an active market, Level 2, which refers to instruments not
traded on an active market but for which observable market inputs are readily available or Level
1 instruments where there is a contractual restriction, and Level 3, which refers to instruments not
traded in an active market and for which no significant observable market inputs are available. As
of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Committee determined that no significant assets or liabilities
were reported at fair value on a recurring basis in the accompanying financial statements.
Disclosures about estimated fair values and fair value measurements were determined by the
Committee based upon pertinent market data and other information available as of December 31,
2018 and 2017. Considerable judgment may be necessary to interpret market and financial data
and to develop fair value measurements in certain circumstances. The Committee’s estimates of
fair value may not be indicative of amounts realized at disposition.

Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates and the difference could be material.

Note C — Concentration of Risk

Cash Balances: Financial instruments that subject the Committee to potential concentrations of
risk consist of cash balances with banking institutions that exceed the federal insurance limits. As
of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Committee reported no significant bank balance in excess of
federal insurance limits.

Bequests Receivable: As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, significantly all of the Committee’s
bequests receivable pertain to the remaining corpus from several decedent’s estates. Accordingly,
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the approximately $96,100 (or 10%) and $131,500 (or 11%),
respectively, of the Committee’s total assets pertain to amounts due from a single bequest.

Note D — Related Party Transactions

During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Committee received approximately
$31,000 and $52,400, respectively, in contributions and dues from board members and employees.
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Note D — Related Party Transactions — Continued

In addition to the contributions and membership dues from current and former board members and
key employees, these individuals also volunteer to serve the Committee and in various capacities.
Additionally, the Committee paid $101,200 and $29,100, respectively, to related state affiliates for
ballot access petitioning and voter registration campaigns and related travel reimbursements to key
employees during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Note E — Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets
The following schedule reflects the Committee’s financial assets as of December 31, 2018 and

2017 reduced by amounts not available for general use due to contractual or donor-imposed
restrictions within one year of the fiscal years ended December 31:

2018 2017
Financial assets at end of year $ 154,889 $ 366,774
Amounts unavailable for general expenditure
within one year of reporting period:
Bequest receivable due in more than one year 69,161 141,693
Donor restricted for payment of debt service 6,129 5,209
Donor restricted for program related initiatives 1,806 2,465
Financial assets available to meet cash needs
for general expenditure within one year $ 77,793 $ 217,407

As part of the Committee’s liquidity management, management may invest any excess funds in
short-term investments, such as bank savings or market funds.

Note F — Bequests Receivable

From time-to-time the Committee receives bequests and legacies from decedent members’ last
wills and testaments. Several bequests were outstanding as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. In
October 2014, the Committee received notification from the executor and trustee of a deceased
member in which the Committee was a named beneficiary of the member’s estate, less any debt
and expenses. In September 2015, the Committee entered into a release and indemnification
agreement with the executor of the member’s last will and testament in which the Committee’s
share of the estate was valued at approximately $235,600.
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Note F — Bequests Receivable — Continued

At the same time, the Committee entered into an escrow agreement with a trustee in which the
Commiftee’s interest in the member’s estate was transfer and held in trust for the benefit of the
Committee. The Committee receives annual distributions from the escrow in amounts allowed
under the FEC regulations and guidelines. During each of the years ended December 31, 2018
and 2017, the Committee received approximately $33,900 and $33,900, respectively, from the
trustee with the remaining balance of approximately $96,100 and $131,500, respectively, reflected
as a bequest receivable as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Committee received notification from the executor
and trustee of an additional bequest in which the Committee was a beneficiary of a deceased
member’s estate. The executor and trustee of the estate estimated the Committee’s portion of the
estate to be approximately $111,900 of which the Committee receivable approximately $33,900
and $33,900, respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 given the
Committee’s interpretation of FEC guidelines and regulations. The remaining balance outstanding
on this bequest receivable was approximately $44,100 and $78,000, respectively, as of December
31,2018 and 2017.

The executors and appointed trustees are holding the remaining outstanding bequests in interest
bearing accounts at federally insured financial institution for the benefit of the Committee. The
Committee reported the bequest receivable at its net realizable value by discounting the initial
bequest for an allowance for doubtful accounts and present value discount. The Committee
determined that no significant discounts were necessary given the funds are held in interesting
bearing, insured accounts. The Committee expects to receive approximately $35,500 annually
from the trustee during the years ending December 31, 2019 and 2020 as set by the FEC.

Note G — Unsecured Lines of Credit

The Committee maintains two unsecured lines of credit with financial institutions in the form of
business credit cards. The business credit cards have total available credit of $103,000 as of
December 31, 2018 and require monthly payments of interest at annual rates that range from
approximately 11.1% to 13.2% as of the year then ended. The Committee reported outstanding
balances on the lines of credit totaling approximately $12,300 and $-0-, respectively, as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017. Interest expense incurred on the lines of credit totaled
approximately $900 and $-0-, respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
The lines of credit are revolving and subject to restrictions and annual renewals and call provisions
of the lenders. The terms and balances owed on the lines of credit are as follows as of December
31,2018:
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Note G — Unsecured Lines of Credit — Continued

Unsecured lines of credit with regional financial instifutions in the form of
credit card accounts with total available credit 0of $103,000. The lines are
guaranteed by the authorized users and carry variable interest rates tied
to the lenders' prime rates, which were approximately 11.1% and 13.2%.
The Committee reported balances of approximately $12,300 and $-0-,
respectively as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 with interest expense of
approximately $900 and $-0-, respectively, during the years then ended.
The lines of credit are revolving and subject to restrictions and renewals. $ 12,257

Note H — Debt Obligations

Mortgage Payable: In April 2014, the Committee entered into a $500,000 secured promissory note
with a regional financial institution to purchase the Committee’s office headquarters. The
promissory note is collateralized by underlying real property and improvements and a security
interest in all depository accounts held with the financial institution. The secured note payable
requires 119 monthly payments of principal and interest of approximately $2,900 beginning in
August 2014 at an annual fixed interest rate of 4.85%. The mortgage also requires a final balloon
payment due in July 2024 that was originally projected to be approximately $371,600; however,
the Committee has made certain principal curtailments since inception of the loan. The Committee
incurred interest expense of approximately $11,000 and $13,000, respectively, on the mortgage
during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. The outstanding principal balance and terms
of the mortgage payable are as follow as of December 31, 2018:

Secured promissory note in the form of a mortgage secured by the land and
building purchased as the Committee's headquarters. The original principal
balance resulting from the purchase in April 2014 was approximately
$500,000. The note agreement is secured by the Committee's headquarter.
The note agreement requires 119 monthly payments of principal of interest
totaling approximately $2,900 with interest accruing at an annual interest
rate of approximately 4.85%. The promissory note also requires a final
final balloon payment due in July 2024 which was originally projected to
be approximately $371,600. However, the Committee has made certain
significant principal curtailments. Interest expense incurred on the promissory
note totaled approximately $11,000 and $13,000, respectively, for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. $ 207,018
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Note H — Debt Obligations — Continued

Mortgage Payable - Continued:

Less current portion of notes payable 25,332
Long-term portion of notes payable $ 181,686

Capital Leases: During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Committee entered into two non-
cancelable lease agreements for a digital copier and postage machine. The leases were determined
by management to be capital leases and are secured by the underlying equipment. The leases are
payable over 60 and 63 months, respectively, with monthly payments totaling approximately $600.
The original principal balance at imputed annual interest rates of 2.89% and 11.03%, respectively,
totaled approximately $33,000. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the net book values of the
capitalized assets were approximately $2,900 and $9,400, respectively, which was net of
accumulated depreciation of approximately $30,100 and $23,500, respectively, for each of the
years then ended. Interest expense incurred at the imputed interest rates noted above totaled
approximately $300 and $600, respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
The outstanding principal balance and terms of the capital lease liabilities are as follows as of
December 31, 2018:

Capital lease liabilities resulting from the purchase of a digital copies and
postage machine. The lease agreements are secured by the underlying
asset and are payable over 60 and 63 months, respectively. The original
principal balances at inputted interest rates of approximately 2.89% and
11.03% totaled approximately $33,000 (or $28,400 and $4,600, respectively).
The leases require monthly payments of principal and interest totaling
approximately $600 (or $500 and $100, respectively). Interest expense
on the capital lease agreements totaled approximately $300 and $600,

respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017. $ 3,765
Less current portion of capital lease liabilities 3,765
Long-term portion of capital lease Labilities $ -

Future Principal Payments: Future principal payments on the mortgage payable and non-
cancelable capital lease agreements are as follows for the years ending December 31:
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Note H — Debt Obligations — Continued

Future Principal Payments — Continued:

Mortgage Digital Copier Postage Machine Total

2019 $ 25332 $ 3,024 $ 741 $ 29,097
2020 26,576 - - 26,576
2021 27,894 - - 27,894
2022 29,278 - - 29,278
2023 30,730 - - 30,730
2024 67,208 - - 67,208

$ 207,018 $ 3,024 $ 741 $ 210,783

Total future payments required on the capital lease agreements, including interest at inputted

annual interest rates of 2.89% and 11.03%, are as follows for the years ending December 31:

Digital Postage
Copier Machine Total
2019 $ 3,049 $ 772 3,821
Less imputed interest at an annual rates 0of 2.89% and 11.03% (56)
Present value of net minimum lease payment 3,765
Less current portion of capital lease liabilities 3,765

Long-term portion of capital lease liabilities

Interest Expense: Total interest expense incurred on the debt obligations, including the above
mortgage payable and capital lease obligations, total approximately $11,300 and $13,600,

respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Note T — Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

The Committee’s net assets consist of various funds restricted for the building fund, college

campus programs, and legal defense and radio advertising funds.

16

2020 NATIONAL CONVENTION | SECOND SITTING
ORLANDO, FLORIDA AND VIA ZOOM — FINAL

Page 111






APPENDIX H
2018 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIBERTARTAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Note K — Retirement Plan

The Committee maintains a 401(k) defined contribution retirement plan that covers employees
who meet certain minimum age and length of service requirements. As a qualified retirement plan,
employees may contribute a portion of their salaries on a tax-deferred basis up to statutory limits.
The Committee has elected to make matching contributions to the plan based upon 50% of
employee contributions up to 6% of the participant’s qualified salary. The Committee incurred
matching contributions and plan administrative expenses totaling approximately $12,400 and
$9,800, respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Note L — Commitments & Contingencies

Litigation and Disputes: The Committee is currently involved in several lawsuits stemming primarily
from state ballot access and presidential candidacy issues. These suits involve various legal actions,
claims and disputes with affiliates that arise from the normal course of business and that, in the opinion
of management, will not have significant impact upon the Committee.

Membership Commitment: The Committee provides nominal or token promotional items to
contributors and members, such as a periodic newsletter designed to keep members informed of
current developments, encourage participation in the political processes, and to promote the
interests of the Committee and its candidates. Although there is no contractual or legal requirement
for the Committee to provide such services, as a part of its purpose and out of courtesy to its
contributors, the Committee is committed to providing timely information and promotional items
to its members. The Committee recognizes expenses on these programs and items as incurred and,
as such, no liability is accrued for any implied member commitment.

Federal Regulation: The Committee is subject to federal and state election laws and oversight by
the Federal Election Commission (FEC). The Committee is subject to the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, the Bipartisan Campaign Reform Act of 2002 (BCRA), and various FEC
and IRS regulations. As such, the Committee is required to file monthly and annual reports with
the FEC regarding contributions and expenditures of its funds. Additionally, the Committee is
precluded from receiving contributions from corporations, labor unions, and certain other third
parties, and contributions received from individuals are limited to annual amounts as determined
by the FEC, which was $33,900 for each of the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
Furthermore, the Commiittee’s books and records are subject to examination by regulatory bodies
and such examinations can result in fines, penalties, or sanctions. Although the results of such
examinations have not had a material impact upon the Committee to date, no assurance can be
given regarding the uncertainty of any future compliance examinations.

Employment Contracts: In June 2017, the Committee entered into an employment agreement with
its now former Executive Director.
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Note L — Commitments & Contingencies — Continued

Employment Contracts — Continued: The term of the contract is for a two and half year period
ending December 2018. The former Executive Director’s employment terminated during the year
ended December 31, 2018. In April 2019, the Committee entered into an employment agreement
with a new Executive Director through January 15, 2021. The employment contracts provide for
a base monthly salary, benefits, and performance incentives based upon financial and other
performance indicators. The employment agreement allows either party to terminate the
agreement with a one month written notice without any liquidating damages.

Hotel Contracts: The Committee has contracts with hotels and other venues for conventions and
other events. These contracts contain cancellation clauses that may require the Committee to pay
certain liquidating damages in the event of cancellation. The amount of damages may vary
depending upon the date of cancellation, numbers of rooms reserved, percentage of rooms resold
by the hotel, etc. Also, in the event of cancellation, the Committee may also risk forfeiture of any
deposits made with these hotels.

Note M — Income Taxes

Income Tax Status: The Committee is recognized as a tax-exempt political organization under
Section 527 of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). Under IRC Section 527, the Committee’s exempt
functions include all activities that relate to and support the process of influencing or attempting
to influence the selection, nomination, election, or appointment of any individual to a public office.
Certain activities unrelated to the exempt purpose, such as net investment income, are subject to
taxation as non-exempt income. During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
Committee did not incur any significant income tax expense on its net investment income, which
was under the specific deduction amount of $100 available on Forms 1120-POL.

Tax Contingencies: Although the Committee has not received any notice of intent to examine its
tax returns, the Committee’s tax returns remain subject to examination or review by tax authorities
pursuant to various statutes of limitations. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America require management to evaluate tax positions taken by the Committee and to
recognize a tax liability (or asset) if the Committee has taken uncertain tax positions that would
more likely than not be sustained upon examination. Management is unaware of any significant
uncertain tax positions arising during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 that are more
likely than not to be sustained should the Committee’s tax returns be subject to examination.
Accordingly, the Committee also did not incur or accrue any significant penalties or interest
associated with uncertain tax positions during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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Note N — Subsequent Events Evaluation

Management has evaluated subsequent events for the period January 1, 2019 through July 12,
2019, the date on which these financial statements were available to be issued and during this
period, there were no subsequent events that required recognition or disclosure in the
accompanying financial statements.
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LIBERTARIAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019
(WITH 2018 COMPARATIVE TOTALS)

2019 2018
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 217,236 $ 13,728
Bequests receivable, net 73,782 141,161
Prepaid expenses and other 13,898 3,861
Property and equipment:
Land 347,881 347,881
Building and improvements 541,388 528,570
Furniture and equipment 42,675 63,206
Computer equipment 22,801 22,801
Computer software 134,614 109,771
Property and equipment, at cost 1,089,359 1,072,229
Accumulated depreciation (223,300) (233,372)
Property and equipment, net 866,059 838,857
Total Assets $ 1,170,975 $ 997,607
Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
Unsecured lines of credit $ - $ 12,257
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 14,222 111,792
Accrued salaries and related benefits 10,717 11,132
Accrued vacation 13,795 12,583
Deferred registrations 217,987 10,250
Capital lease liabilities - 3,765
Mortgage payable 103,105 207,018
Total liabilities 359,826 368,797
Net Assets
Without donor restrictions 799,024 620,875
With donor restrictions 12,125 7,935
Total net assets 811,149 628,810
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 1,170,975 $ 997,607
See accompanying auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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LIBERTARIAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
& CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(WITH 2018 COMPARATIVE TOTALS)

2019
Without Donor  With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total 2018
Revenue and Support
Contributions and membership $ 1,275,103 $ 113,412 $ 1,388,515 $ 1,334,149
Convention and other events 40,974 - 40,974 369,830
Political campaign materials 68,670 - 68,670 67,852
Sponsorships and classifieds 2,045 - 2,045 210
Interest and dividends 1,114 - 1,114 1,395
Net assets released from restrictions:
Building, legal, and other funds 109,222 (109,222) - -
Total revenue and support 1,497,128 4,190 1,501,318 1,773,436
Expense
Program services:
Communications and membership 485,516 - 485,516 533,504
Special projects and other programs 153,749 - 153,749 253,274
Candidate and campaign programs 107,143 - 107,143 230,901
Affiliate support 76,919 - 76,919 69,364
Conventions and events 18,206 - 18,206 303,555
Ballot access 10,182 - 10,182 168,089
Total program services 851,715 - 851,715 1,558,687
Supporting services:
Management and general 244,175 - 244,175 171,504
Fundraising and donor acquisition 223,089 - 223,089 249,638
Total supporting services 467,264 - 467,264 421,142
Total expense 1,318,979 - 1,318,979 1,979,829
Change in Net Assets 178,149 4,190 182,339 (206,393)
Net assets, beginning of year 620,875 7,935 628,810 835,203
Net Assets, End of Year $ 799,024 $ 12,125 $ 811,149 $ 628810

See accompanying auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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LIBERTARIAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(WITH 2018 COMPARATIVE TOTALS)

Page 122

2019
Program Services Total Supporting Services Total
Communications Special Campaign Affiliate Conventions Ballot Program Management Fundraising&  Supporting
Membership Projects Programs Support & Events Access Services & General Acquisition Services Total 2018
Expenses
Salaries and wages $ 167,291 $ 41,981 $ 9,934 $ 8,422 $ 9,120 $ 5,100 $ 241,848 $ 108,140 $ 38290 $ 146,430 $ 388,278 $ 411,070
Other program expenses - - 87,312 60,105 - - 147417 5,093 146,650 151,743 299,160 459,470
Direct program expenses 151,539 69,938 - - - - 221,477 - - - 221,477 657,662
Professional fees 45,387 11,390 2,695 2,285 2,474 1,384 65,615 29,339 10,388 39,727 105,342 88,657
Computer expenses 25,532 6,407 1,516 1,286 1,392 778 36,911 16,504 5,844 22,348 59,259 78,457
Occupancy expense 20,204 5,070 1,200 1,017 1,101 616 29,208 13,060 4,624 17,684 46,892 49,437
Employee benefits 17,596 4,416 1,045 886 958 536 25,437 11,375 4,028 15,403 40,840 44,100
Employer payroll taxes 12,856 3,226 763 647 701 392 18,585 8,310 2,943 11,253 29,838 32,283
Contractors and interns - - - - - - - 23,194 - 23,194 23,194 45,361
Depreciation and amortizatior 9,862 2,475 586 496 538 301 14,258 6,375 2,257 8,632 22,890 24,266
Travel and meetings 8,716 2,187 517 439 475 266 12,600 5,634 1,995 7,629 20,229 26,792
Telephone and data services 6,366 1,597 378 321 347 194 9,203 4,115 1,457 5,572 14,775 15,933
Printing and reproduction 4,633 1,163 275 233 252 141 6,697 2,995 1,060 4,055 10,752 4,731
Postage and shipping 3,891 976 231 196 212 119 5,625 2,515 890 3,405 9,030 11,510
Insurance expense 3,593 902 213 181 196 110 5,195 2,322 822 3,144 8,339 7,758
Office supplies and materials 3,330 836 198 168 182 101 4,815 2,153 762 2,915 7,730 8,070
Bank and other fees 2,928 735 174 147 160 89 4,233 1,893 670 2,563 6,796 9,578
Payroll processing fees 951 239 56 48 52 29 1,375 615 217 832 2,207 2,521
Equipment leases 841 211 50 42 46 26 1,216 543 192 735 1,951 2,173
2019 Total Expenses $§ 485516 $§ 153,749 $ 107,143 $ 76,919 $ 18,206 $ 10,182 $ 851,715 $ 244,175 $ 223,089 $ 467,264 $1,318,979 $ 1,979,829
2018 Total Expenses $ 533,504 $ 253,274 $ 230,901 $ 69,364 $ 303,555 $ 168,089 $ 1,558,687 $ 171,504 $ 249,638 $ 421,142 $ 1,979,829

See accompanying auditors’ report and notes to financial statements.
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LIBERTARTAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019
(WITH 2018 COMPARATIVE TOTALS)

2019 2018

Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
Change in net assets $ 182339 $  (206,393)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 22,890 24,266
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Bequests receivable 67,379 69,332
Prepaid expenses and other (10,037) 33,142
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (97,570) 84,211
Accrued salaries and related benefits 415) 2,059
Accrued vacation 1,212 (8,591)
Deferred registrations 207,737 (91,478)
Total adjustments 191,196 112,941
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 373,535 (93,452)
Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (50,092) (25,125)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (50,092) (25,125)
Cash Provided (Used) by Financing Activities
Principal advances on lines of credit 196,708 268,442
Principal repayments on lines of credit (208,965) (256,185)
Principal payments on capital lease liability (3,765) (6,933)
Principal payments on mortgage payable (103,913) (29,300)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities (119,935) (23,976)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 203,508 (142,553)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 13,728 156,281
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 217,236 $ 13,728

Supplemental Cash Flows Information:

Cash paid for income taxes $ - $ -
Cash paid for interest $ 9,150 $ 12,256
See accompanying auditors' report and notes to financial statements.
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LIBERTARTAN NATIONAL COMMITTEE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Note A — Organization & Nature of Activities

Organization: The Libertarian National Committee, Inc. (the Committee) was founded in 1971 as
a national, tax-exempt political organization which is the operational arm of the Libertarian Party,
a grassroots political organization. The Committee was incorporated in February 1995 and its
affairs are directed by its National Board of Directors, who are elected by delegates bi-annually at
the national convention. The Committee, with the consent of the delegates, also establishes the
platform of the Libertarian Party, which is based upon the basic premises of civil liberties and
personal freedom, a free-market economy, free trade, and a foreign policy of non-intervention and
peace. The Committee has approximately 14,000 contributing members.

Programs: The Committee's program activities consist of affiliate support, which comprises
developing or supporting state and county affiliate parties; ballot access, which comprises getting
candidates on ballots and includes corresponding lawsuits required to accomplish such; brand
development, which is the process of developing an image in the minds of voters; campus outreach,
which represents campus recruiting and support groups; candidate support, which comprises
recruiting and supporting candidates with their electoral ambitions; litigation support, which
includes proactive lawsuits to change public policy, other than ballot access; lobbying, which
includes efforts to persuade legislators to change laws, including ballot access laws; media
relations, which consists of direct communication with the media; member communications, which
is comprised of the Libertarian Party News periodical and other member communications;
outreach, which includes initiatives to reach the general public and outside groups; and voter
registration, which consist of voter registration campaign initiatives.

Note B - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting and Presentation: The Committee prepares its financial statements on the
accrual basis of accounting. Consequently, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses when
obligations are incurred. The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total and not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in
conjunction with the Committee’s financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31,
2018, from which the summarized information was derived. Certain prior year information was
reclassified to adhere with the current financial statement presentation.

Income Tax Status: The Committee is recognized as a tax-exempt political organization under
Section 527 of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). Under IRC Section 527, the Committee’s exempt
functions include all activities that relate to and support the process of influencing or attempting
to influence the selection, nomination, election, or appointment of any individual to a public or
political office.
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Note B — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Income Tax Status - Continued: Certain activities unrelated to the exempt purpose, such as net
investment income, are subject to taxation. During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
the Commiittee incurred no significant income tax expense on its net investment income, which
was under the specific deduction amount of $100 available on Form 1120-POL. Although the
Committee has not received any notice of intent to examine its tax returns, the Committee’s tax
returns remain subject to examination by tax authorities pursuant to various statutes of limitation.
The Committee is also subject to oversight by the Federal Election Commission.

Revenue Recognition: Contributions and donations and bequests and legacies are recorded when
received or when the unconditional promise-to-give is known at the earliest point determinable
and measurable. They are recorded by the Committee as increases to its net assets without donor
restrictions or to net assets with donor restrictions based upon the existence or lack of donor-
imposed restrictions. Any restricted amounts received and release from restriction in the same
reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restrictions. Restricted resources from
prior years in which the Committee meets the donor’s restriction during the current year are
reflected as net assets released from restrictions. Donated goods or contributed services meeting
the requirements for recognition under accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America are reported at fair value at the time of donation. The Committee treats
membership dues as contributions and donations in the accompanying financial statements given
that members receive de minimis benefits in exchange for their dues. Revenue from contributions
and donations are recognized at the earliest point an unconditional promise-to-give is both
determinable and measurable. Revenue from conditional promises-to-give are recognized as the
donor or grantor’s conditions are substantially met. Revenue from any program service activities
and conventions and events are recognized when earned.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: For financial statement presentation purposes, the Committee
considers highly liquid debt instruments with maturities of three months or less, including money
market funds, to be cash equivalents. The Committee periodically has cash balances in excess of
federal insurance limits available for depository accounts.

Bequests Receivable: The Committee’s bequests receivable consist of amounts due from decedent
members’ last wills and testaments. The most significant bequest pertains to a deceased member’s
unconditional promise-to-give the Committee a portion of the estate after liquidation of debts and
payment of expenses. The Committee’s portion of the net estate was determined to be
approximately $235,600, which was transferred to a trustee and is being held in trust for the benefit
of the Committee given the annual contribution limits allowable under Federal Election
Commission (FEC) guidelines. The trustee and escrow agent is annually releasing the amount
allowable under FEC guidelines to the Committee. The remaining funds resulting from the
distributions from the decedent’s estate are being held in trust at a federally insured financial
institution in money market funds for the benefit of the Committee.
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Note B — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Bequests Receivable — Continued: The Commiittee received approximately $72,000 and $68,800,
respectively, from the trustees holding the bequests during the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018. The remaining bequest reflected at its net realizable value, which was determined by
the Commiittee by initially discounting the initial bequest by an allowance for doubtful accounts
and present value discount. Given the nature of the bequest and that the funds are being held in
interest bearing accounts for the benefit of the Committee, the Committee determined that
discounts for present value and collectability were unnecessary.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets: The Committee’s prepaid expenses and other assets consist
principally of prepaid rent, insurance, licenses, promotional supplies, and refundable deposits.

Property and Equipment: The Committee capitalizes property and equipment acquisitions at cost
or fair value at time of donation and depreciates these items using the straight-line method of
depreciation over their estimated useful lives, which range from approximately 3 to 5 years for
furniture, equipment, and software and 15 to 39 years for building and related improvements.
Expenditures for repairs and maintenance that do not extend the useful life of an asset, consumable
supplies, and de minimis items are expensed as incurred. Depreciation and amortization expense
was approximately $22,900 and $24,300, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018. No significant loss on the dispositions or impairment of property and equipment was
reported by the Committee during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2019.

Deferred Rent: The Committee recognizes rent expense on its long-term operating leases on a
straight-line basis. A deferred rent liability is reflected for the effects of rent escalation clauses
and the difference between actual rental payments and the straight-line amortization. The
Committee reported no leases with significant remaining escalations as of December 31, 2019.

Net Assets: The Committee classifies its net assets based upon the existence or lack of donor-
imposed restrictions. When the Committee receives contributions that are restricted by the donor
or limited as to their use and the Committee has not met the donor’s restriction by the end of the
reporting year, then the Committee reports these amounts as net assets with donor restrictions.
Restricted net assets in which the Committee has met the donor’s stipulations during the fiscal year
are reflected as net assets released from restrictions in the accompanying financial statements. Any
restricted amounts received and released from restriction in the same reporting period are reported
as net assets without donor restrictions. The components of the Committee’s net assets are as
follows:
s Without donor restrictions — Represents unrestricted resources that are available to support
the Committee’s operations at the discretion of the Board of Directors and management.
s With donor restrictions — Represents amounts received and restricted by donors to support
specific Committee programs and initiatives, such as the building fund, ballot access,
candidacy initiatives, and college campus programs.

9
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Note B — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Continued

Fair Value Measurements — Continued: The Committee determines fair value using a hierarchy
based upon the lowest level of any input that is significant to the measurement with Level 3 being
the lowest recognized level. The Committee attempts to maximize the use of observable inputs
(Level 1 and 2) and minimize unobservable inputs (Level 3). Accordingly, the Committee would
classify financial instruments measured at fair value in any of the following categories: Level 1,
which refers to instruments traded in an active market, Level 2, which refers to instruments not
traded on an active market but for which observable market inputs are readily available or Level
1 instruments where there is a contractual restriction, and Level 3, which refers to instruments not
traded in an active market and for which no significant observable market inputs are available. As
of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Committee determined that no significant assets or liabilities
were reported at fair value on a recurring basis in the accompanying financial statements.
Disclosures about estimated fair values and fair value measurements were determined by the
Committee based upon pertinent market data and other information available as of December 31,
2019 and 2018. Considerable judgment may be necessary to interpret market and financial data
and to develop fair value measurements in certain circumstances. The Committee’s estimates of
fair value may not be indicative of amounts realized at disposition.

Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates and the difference could be material.

Note C — Concentration of Risk

Cash Balances: Financial instruments that subject the Committee to potential concentrations of
risk consist of cash balances with banking institutions that exceed the federal insurance limits. As
of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Committee reported no significant bank balance in excess of
federal insurance limits.

Bequests Receivable: As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, significantly all of the Committee’s
bequests receivable pertain to the remaining corpus from several decedent’s estates. Accordingly,
as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the approximately $73,800 (or 6%) and $141,200 (or 14%),
respectively, of the Committee’s total assets pertain to amounts due from bequests.

Note D — Related Party Transactions

During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Committee received approximately
$41,100 and $31,000, respectively, in contributions and dues from board members and employees.
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Note D — Related Party Transactions — Continued

In addition to the contributions and membership dues from current and former board members and
key employees, these individuals also volunteer to serve the Committee and in various capacities.
Additionally, the Committee paid $3,400 and $101,200, respectively, to related state affiliates for
ballot access petitioning and voter registration campaigns and related travel reimbursements to key
employees during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Note E — Liquidity and Availability of Financial Assets
The following schedule reflects the Committee’s financial assets as of December 31, 2019 and

2018 reduced by amounts not available for general use due to contractual or donor-imposed
restrictions within one year of the fiscal years ended December 31:

2019 2018
Financial assets at end of year $ 291,018 $ 154,889
Amounts unavailable for general expenditure
within one year of reporting period:
Bequest receivable due in more than one year 25,230 69,161
Donor restricted for payment of debt service 10,394 6,129
Donor restricted for program related initiatives 1,731 1,806
Financial assets available to meet cash needs
for general expenditure within one year $ 253,663 $ 77,793

As part of the Committee’s liquidity management, management may invest any excess funds in
short-term investments, such as bank savings or market funds.

Note F — Bequests Receivable

From time-to-time the Committee receives bequests and legacies from decedent members’ last
wills and testaments. Several bequests were outstanding as of December 31, 2019 and 2018. In
October 2014, the Committee received notification from the executor and trustee of a deceased
member in which the Committee was a named beneficiary of the member’s estate, less any debt
and expenses. In September 2015, the Committee entered into a release and indemnification
agreement with the executor of the member’s last will and testament in which the Committee’s
share of the estate was valued at approximately $235,600.
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Note F — Bequests Receivable — Continued

At the same time, the Committee entered into an escrow agreement with a trustee in which the
Committee’s interest in the member’s estate was transferred and held in trust for the benefit of the
Committee. The Committee receives annual distributions from the escrow in amounts allowed
under the FEC regulations and guidelines. During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018,
the Committee received approximately $35,500 and $33,900, respectively, from the trustee
representing the bequest with the remaining balances of approximately $60,700 and $94,500,
respectively, reflected as a component of bequests receivable as of December 31, 2019 and 2018.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Committee received notification from the executor
and trustee of an additional bequest in which the Committee was a beneficiary of a deceased
member’s estate. The executor and trustee of the estate estimated the Committee’s portion of the
estate to be approximately $111,900 of which the Committee receivable approximately $35,500
and $33,900, respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 given the
Committee’s interpretation of FEC guidelines and regulations. The remaining balance outstanding
on this bequest receivable was approximately $13,100 and $45,700, respectively, as of December
31,2019 and 2018.

The executors and appointed trustees are holding the remaining outstanding bequests in interest
bearing accounts at federally insured financial institution for the benefit of the Committee. The
Committee reported the bequest receivable at its net realizable value by discounting the initial
bequest for an allowance for doubtful accounts and present value discount. The Committee
determined that no significant discounts were necessary given the funds are held in interesting
bearing, insured accounts. The Committee expects to receive approximately $35,500 annually
from the trustee representing each bequest during the years ending December 31, 2020 as set by
the FEC. The FEC contribution limits for the year ended December 31, 2021 are pending.

Note G — Unsecured Lines of Credit

The Committee maintains two unsecured lines of credit with financial institutions in the form of
business credit cards. The business credit cards have total available credit of $103,000 as of
December 31, 2019 and require monthly payments of interest at annual rates that range from
approximately 10.7% and 13.2% as of the year then ended. The Commiittee reported outstanding
balances on the lines of credit totaling approximately $-0- and $12,300, respectively, as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018. Interest expense incurred on the lines of credit totaled
approximately $200 and $900, respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.
The lines of credit are revolving and subject to restrictions and annual renewals and call provisions
of the lenders. The terms and balances owed on the lines of credit are as follows as of December
31,2019:
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Note G — Unsecured Lines of Credit — Continued

Unsecured lines of credit with regional financial institutions in the form of
credit card accounts with total available credit of $103,000. The lines are
guaranteed by the authorized users and carry variable interest rates tied
to the lenders' prime rates, which were approximately 10.7% and 13.2%.
The Committee reported balances of approximately $-0- and $12,300,
respectively as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 with interest expense of
approximately $200 and $900, respectively, during the years then ended.
The lines of credit are revolving and subject to restrictions and renewals. $ -

Note H — Debt Obligations

Mortgage Payable: In April 2014, the Committee entered into a $500,000 secured promissory note
with a regional financial institution to purchase the Committee’s office headquarters. The
promissory note is collateralized by underlying real property and improvements and a security
interest in all depository accounts held with the financial institution. The secured note payable
requires 119 monthly payments of principal and interest of approximately $2,900 beginning in
August 2014 at an annual fixed interest rate of 4.85%. The mortgage also requires a final balloon
payment due in July 2024 that was originally projected to be approximately $371,600; however,
the Committee has made significant principal curtailments since inception of the loan. The
Committee incurred interest expense of approximately $8,800 and $11,000, respectively, on the
mortgage during the years ended December 31,2019 and 2018. The outstanding principal balance
and terms of the mortgage payable are as follow as of December 31, 2019:

Secured promissory note in the form of a mortgage secured by the land and
building purchased as the Committee's headquarters. The original principal
balance resulting from the purchase in April 2014 was approximately
$500,000. The note agreement is secured by the Committee's headquarter.
The note agreement requires 119 monthly payments of principal of interest
totaling approximately $2,900 with interest accruing at an annual interest
rate of approximately 4.85%. The promissory note also requires a final
final balloon payment due in July 2024 which was originally projected to
be approximately $371,600. However, the Committee has made periodic
significant principal curtailments. Interest expense incurred on the promissory
note totaled approximately $8,800 and $11,000, respectively, for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. $ 103,105
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Note H — Debt Obligations — Continued

Mortgage Payable - Continued:

Less current portion of notes payable 30,479
Long-term portion of notes payable $ 72,626

Capital Leases: During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Committee entered into two non-
cancelable lease agreements for a digital copier and postage machine. The leases were determined
by management to be capital leases and are secured by the underlying equipment. The leases are
payable over 60 and 63 months, respectively, with monthly payments totaling approximately $600.
The original principal balance at imputed annual interest rates of 2.89% and 11.03%, respectively,
totaled approximately $33,000. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the net book values of the
capitalized assets were approximately $-0- and $2,900, respectively, which was net of accumulated
depreciation of approximately $33,000 and $30,100, respectively, for each of the years then ended.
Interest expense incurred at the imputed interest rates noted above totaled approximately $200 and
$300, respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. The outstanding
principal balance and terms of the capital lease liabilities are as follows as of December 31, 2019:

Capital lease liabilities resulting from the purchase of a digital copies and
postage machine. The lease agreements are secured by the underlying
asset and are payable over 60 and 63 months, respectively. The original
principal balances at inputted interest rates of approximately 2.89% and
11.03% totaled approximately $33,000 (or $28,400 and $4,600, respectively).
The leases require monthly payments of principal and interest totaling
approximately $600 (or $500 and $100, respectively). Interest expense
on the capital lease agreements totaled approximately $200 and $300,
respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. $ -

Less current portion of capital lease liabilities -

Long-term portion of capital lease liabilities $ -

Future Principal Payments: Future principal payments on the mortgage payable and non-
cancelable capital lease agreements are as follows for the years ending December 31:
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Note H — Debt Obligations — Continued

Future Principal Payments — Continued:

Mortgage Digital Copier Postage Machine Total

2020 $ 30479 $ - $ - $ 30479
2021 31,985 - - 31,985
2022 33,571 - - 33,571
2023 7,070 - - 7,070

$ 103,105 $ - $ - $ 103,105

Interest Expense: Total interest expense incurred on the debt obligations, including the above
mortgage payable and capital lease obligations, total approximately $9,200 and $11,300,
respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Note T — Temporarily Restricted Net Assets
The Committee’s net assets consist of various funds restricted for the building fund, college

campus programs, and legal defense and radio advertising funds. The Committee’s net assets with
donor restrictions consist of the following as of December 31, 2019 and 2018:

2019 2018
Net assets with donor restrictions:
Building acquisition fund $ 10,394 $ 6,129
College campus programs 1,731 1,806

Legal defense and radio fund - -

$ 12,125 $ 7,935

The following net assets were released from restrictions during the years ended December 31,
2019 and 2018:
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Note T— Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — Continued

2019 2018
Net assets released from restrictions:
Building acquisition fund $ 100,958 $ 5,500
College campus programs 75 -
Legal defense and radio fund 8,189 669

$ 109,222 $ 6,169

Note J — Intentions-to-Give

The Committee receives commitment from members who many times provide their credit card
information for future contribution purposes. The members are generally making recurring
contributions to the Committee and do not commit to a specific number of payments or period of
time for which the Committee may charge the recurring gifts. The members may also decline the
charges or request that the Committee cease making charges against their credit card at any time
and completely at their discretion. The Committee treats these recurring contributions as
intentions-to-give or conditional promises to give and as such, revenue is not recognized until the
contribution is both determinable and measurable, which generally occurs when the credit card is
processed and receipt received by the Committee. During the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, the Committee recognized approximately $366,100 and $360,200, respectively, from
recurring contributions from members.

Note K — Retirement Plan

The Committee maintains a 401(k) defined contribution retirement plan that covers employees
who meet certain minimum age and length of service requirements. As a qualified retirement plan,
employees may contribute a portion of their salaries on a tax-deferred basis up to statutory limits.
The Committee has elected to make matching contributions to the plan based upon 50% of
employee contributions up to 6% of the participant’s qualified salary. The Committee incurred
matching contributions and plan administrative expenses totaling approximately $12,900 and
$12,400, respectively, during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.

Note L — Commitments & Contingencies

Litigation and Disputes: The Committee is currently involved in several lawsuits stemming primarily
from state ballot access and presidential candidacy issues.
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Note L — Commitments & Contingencies — Continued

Litigation and Disputes — Continued: These suits involve various legal actions, claims and disputes
with affiliates that arise from the normal course of business and that, in the opinion of management,
will not have significant impact upon the Committee.

Membership Commitment: The Committee provides nominal or token promotional items to
contributors and members, such as a periodic newsletter designed to keep members informed of
current developments, encourage participation in the political processes, and to promote the
interests of the Committee and its candidates. Although there is no contractual or legal requirement
for the Committee to provide such services, as a part of its purpose and out of courtesy to its
contributors, the Committee is committed to providing timely information and promotional items
to its members. The Committee recognizes expenses on these programs and items as incurred and,
as such, no liability is accrued for any implied member commitment.

Federal Regulation: The Committee is subject to federal and state election laws and oversight by
the Federal Election Commission (FEC). The Committee is subject to the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, the Bipartisan Campaign Reform Act of 2002 (BCRA), and various FEC
and IRS regulations. As such, the Committee is required to file monthly and annual reports with
the FEC regarding contributions and expenditures of its funds. Additionally, the Committee is
precluded from receiving contributions from corporations, labor unions, and certain other third
parties, and contributions received from individuals are limited to annual amounts as determined
by the FEC, which was $35,500 and $33,900, respectively, for each of the years ended December
31, 2019 and 2018. Furthermore, the Committee’s books and records are subject to examination
by regulatory bodies and such examinations can result in fines, penalties, or sanctions. Although
the results of such examinations have not had a material impact upon the Committee to date, no
assurance can be given regarding the uncertainty of any future compliance examinations.

Employment Contracts: In April 2020, the Committee entered into an employment agreement
with its Executive Director through January 15, 2021. The employment contracts provide for a
base monthly salary, benefits, and performance incentives based upon financial and other
performance indicators. The employment agreement allows either party to terminate the
agreement with a one month written notice without any liquidating damages.

Hotel Contracts: The Committee has contracts with hotels and other venues for conventions and
other events. These contracts contain cancellation clauses that may require the Committee to pay
certain liquidating damages in the event of cancellation. The amount of damages may vary
depending upon the date of cancellation, numbers of rooms reserved, percentage of rooms resold
by the hotel, etc. Also, in the event of cancellation, the Committee may also risk forfeiture of any
deposits made with these hotels.
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Note M — Income Taxes

Income Tax Status: The Committee is recognized as a tax-exempt political organization under
Section 527 of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC). Under IRC Section 527, the Committee’s exempt
functions include all activities that relate to and support the process of influencing or attempting
to influence the selection, nomination, election, or appointment of any individual to a public office.
Certain activities unrelated to the exempt purpose, such as net investment income, are subject to
taxation as non-exempt income. During the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the
Committee did not incur any significant income tax expense on its net investment income, which
was under the specific deduction amount of $100 available on Forms 1120-POL.

Tax Contingencies: Although the Committee has not received any notice of intent to examine its
tax returns, the Committee’s tax returns remain subject to examination or review by tax authorities
pursuant to various statutes of limitations. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America require management to evaluate tax positions taken by the Committee and to
recognize a tax liability (or asset) if the Committee has taken uncertain tax positions that would
more likely than not be sustained upon examination. Management is unaware of any significant
uncertain tax positions arising during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 that are more
likely than not to be sustained should the Committee’s tax returns be subject to examination.
Accordingly, the Committee also did not incur or accrue any significant penalties or interest
associated with uncertain tax positions during the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018.
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